
Development Control A 
Committee
Agenda

Date:      Wednesday, 20 November 2019
Time:      2.00 pm
Venue:   The Council Chamber - City Hall, College 
Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR

Distribution:
Councillors: Donald Alexander (Chair), Chris Windows (Vice-Chair), Clive Stevens, Mark Wright, 
Fabian Breckels, Paul Goggin, Stephen Clarke, Mike Davies, Margaret Hickman, Olly Mead, Afzal Shah 
and Steve Smith

Copies to: 

Issued by: Norman Cornthwaite, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3399, Bristol BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 9222390
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Tuesday, 12 November 2019

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Development Control A Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information 

(Pages 4 - 6)

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

3. Declarations of Interest 
To note any interests relevant to the consideration of items on the agenda.
Please note that any declarations of interest made at the meeting which are not 
on the register of interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for 
inclusion.

4. Minutes of the previous meeting 
To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record. (Pages 7 - 14)

5. Appeals 
To note appeals lodged, imminent public inquiries and appeals awaiting decision. (Pages 15 - 20)

6. Enforcement 
To note recent enforcement notices. (Page 21)



Development Control A Committee – Agenda

7. Public Forum 
Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item *Democratic Services Officer check 
time limit for your particular Committee*

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum.  The 
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at 
the back of this agenda.  Public Forum items should be emailed to 
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines 
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the 
meeting.  For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in 
this office at the latest by 5 pm on *name deadline date*

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the 
working day prior to the meeting.  For this meeting this means that your 
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on *name 
deadline date*.

Please note, your time allocated to speak may have to be strictly limited if 
there are a lot of submissions. This may be as short as one minute.

8. Planning and Development 

(Page 22)

a) 18/05310/F - St Catherine's Place Shopping Centre, East 
Street, Bedminster

(Pages 23 - 72)

9. Date of Next Meeting 
22nd January 2020 at 6.00 pm.

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Development Control Committee A

Public Forum
D C Committee A

1. Members of the Development Control Committee A
Councillors: Don Alexander, Chris Windows, Fabian Breckels, 
Stephen Clarke, Mike Davies, Paul Goggin, Margaret Hickman, Olly Mead (Job share), 
Afzal Shah (Job share), Steve Smith, Clive Stevens and Mark Wright; 

      
2. Officers: 

Zoe Willcox – Director, Development of Place; Gary Collins - Development Management, 
Laurence Fallon – Transport Development Management.

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



Development Control Committee A

Statements/Petitions
Statement Name Application

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20 
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

30
31
32

Page 5



Development Control Committee A

33
34 
35
36
37
38
39
40

41
42
43
44

45

46
47
48
49
50

Page 6



Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Development Control A 

Committee

16 October 2019 at 6.00 pm

Members Present:-
Councillors: Donald Alexander (Chair), Chris Windows (Vice-Chair), Clive Stevens, Mark Wright, 
Fabian Breckels, Paul Goggin, Stephen Clarke, Mike Davies, Margaret Hickman, Afzal Shah and 
Steve Smith

Officers in Attendance:-
Gary Collins and Laurence Fallon

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

The Chair welcomed those present and explained the process to be followed on hearing of each 
application.

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

None

3. Declarations of Interest

The following were noted:

1. Councillor Clive Stevens and Councillor Mark Wright 
a. Agenda item 8c – 19/01909/X 85 Queens Road Clifton
b. Local ward members and had submitted objections to the application

2. Councillor Clive Stevens
a. Agenda item 8b – 19/03178/F  6-8 Belgrave Hill
b. Local ward member and submitted an objection to the application

3. Councillor Mike Davies 
a. Agenda item 8e – 19/01817/F
b. Local ward member and submitted an objection to the application 

Public Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

4. Minutes of the previous meeting

Resolved that the minutes of the 4th September be approved as correct record ban signed by the Chair, 
with the following amendment:

a. That the line in the declaration of interest that stated that Cllr Breckels ward boundary was near 
8e application should be removed.

5. Appeals

The Head of Development Management introduced the report providing an overview of the appeals 
process.  He Highlighted the following:

1. Item 5 – Trust Headquarters Marlborough Street City Centre Bristol – the appeal hearing date is 
pending and will be shared when known.

2. Item 24 – 7-29 Wilder Street Student Accommodation: The application was refused by Committee 
against officer recommendation.  The Inspector allowed the appeal and awarded costs against 
BCC.  Committee refused on the basis of overconcentration and the loss of employment space.  
The inspector made a partial award of costs because he felt that the employment space reason 
could not be substantiated. In response to a question from a Member, officers confirmed that the 
Council was liable to pay the developers approximately £7,500 and this did not include the 
Council’s own costs in defending the appeal.

6. Enforcement

The Head of Development Management was pleased to inform Committee that 6 enforcement notices 
had been issued.  

7. Public Forum

Members of the Committee received Public Forum Statements in advance of the meeting.

The Statements were heard before the application they related to and were taken fully into consideration 
by the Committee prior to reaching a decision. 

8. Planning and Development

9. 19/02632/PB Hengrove Park, Hengrove Way, Bristol

The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the 
report for this item highlighting the following:

Page 8



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

a. This application is a resubmission of an application refused by this Committee on the 27th February 
2019 against the recommendation of officers, and seeks to address  the 6 grounds for refusal 
through a number of amendments.

b. Committee were reminded of the intention of the development and its importance to Bristol’s 
housing strategy.

c. The previous reasons for refusal were outlined namely; density; lack of quality park; loss of poplar 
trees; lack of employment space; lack of community facilities; car dependency.

d. Sport England a statutory consultee had submitted an objection to the application; conversations 
are ongoing;  the revised application increases the offer of sport facilities but is short on the detail 
requested by Sport England at this outline stage.  This is because it is too early in the process to 
provide such detail.   It is anticipated that this objection may be withdrawn.

e. If not withdrawn and the application is approved it will have to be referred to the Secretary of 
State to afford the opportunity for a call in before a decision can be issued.

f. Officers recommend approval because the amended application overcame the reasons given for 
refusal.  That draft conditions are to be finalised under delegated authority.

g. Questions for Clarification
h. The development did not impact the existing play area and the current designated green space.
i. Adjustments had been made to retain the poplar trees noted in the refusal resolution but that 

adjustment had resulted in the loss of dwellings.
j. Hengrove and Whitchurch Park Neighbourhood Plan:  the application is considered against the 

HWPNP and all current planning policy; the expectation is for the proposal to adhere to the 
Masterplan Moves plan and Bristol City Council planning policy.

k. The report addresses the health care issues; the recommended contribution stemmed from 
discussions with the CCG, NHS and local GPs. 

l. The application is an outline application with a number of details/areas to work through as the 
development progresses, which will be through reserved matters applications.

m. Air quality:  this is to be managed with a city-wide approach and cannot be attached to one 
development.

n. Debate
o. Members noted the marked improvement in the application; the improvements made to the 

development plans to mitigation the areas of refusal.  There remain concerns about employment 
space; parking; improved public transport but they were not considered insurmountable.

p. HWPNP: Some concern on whether the requirements in the neighbourhood plan had been fully 
met within the revised plan.

q. Cllr Davies, seconded by Cllr Shah, proposed that committee support officer recommendation to 
approve referral to the Secretary of State.

r. When put to the vote
s. Resolved (8 for; 3 against; 0 abstention) that the application be approved but referred to the 

Secretary of State, should Sport England’s objection be sustained, subject to: the MoU / 
Alternative Agreement heads of terms set out in s10 of the report; and draft conditions (to be 
finalised under delegated powers).

10.19/02952/M Land Next To River Cattle Market Road Bristol

Page 9



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the 
report for this item highlighting the following:

a. The application was for approval of reserved matters in relation to the development of 953 bed 
student accommodation and associated works pursuant to conditions 1 and 3 of outline 
permission 17/06459/P being details of layout, scale, appearance and landscape.

b. The Committee were provided with a visual presentation of the planned site layout; associated 
landscaping; how it would retain the open access to the site; and proposed design of the buildings. 
The scale of the proposal had to seek to protect views of the tower of Temple Meads Station.  The 
design demonstrated how natural light would be introduced into the development; the proposed 
walkways and other design aspects demonstrated how the proposals would be a quality 
environment that would support the welfare of the students .

c. Officers recommended approval of the reserved matters.
d. Questions for clarification
e. The final build is expected to reflect the details shared with committee in this application, and any 

significant alteration would come back to committee for approval.
f. The design will include a public court yard to allow access to the general public and any change to 

access would require a new planning application. 
g. Debate
h. Members commented on the design; that the tall building looked like a tall office block with very 

little elegance and the frontage appeared unambitious; that this was  a building that will be seen 
as train passengers approach the train station; and that it failed to make an impact.

i. Noted the openness of the courtyard and proposed landscaping with cycle parking and conflicts 
must be avoided

j. Opinion was divided on the design merits of the proposals.
k. The Chair proposed, seconded by Cllr Smith, that committee support the officer recommendation 

and approve the reserved matters.
l. When put to the vote
m. Resolved (7 for; 4 against; 0 abstention) that reserved matters be approved.

11.19/01909/X 85 Queens Road, Clifton, Bristol BS8 1QS

Councillor Clive Stephens and Cllr Mark Wright stood down from Committee at the start of the public 
forum presentation and took no part in debate or the decision making process.

The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the 
report for this item highlighting the following:

a. The application is for the variation of condition no.7 (opening hours) following grant of planning 
permission 16/03266/F to vary operating hours for the restaurant Lost and Found.  The application 
is presented to committee for consideration because of the number of objections received.

Page 10



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

b. The restaurant is located and trades from the ground floor and basement of a four storey building 
within an area known for its night time economy.  It is on the edge of a residential area with 
Richmond Heights being in its vicinity.

c. An overview was given of the concerns raised from the consultation;  a number based on the 
business allegedly breaching its operating license the Licensing Act objectives; primarily the 
concern of the unacceptable harm to nearby residents from  noise generated by the premises.

d. The report stated that no objections had been received from the responsible authorities to 
substantiate the allegation of noise and breach of the license; that no harm had been proven; and 
there was no evidence to substantiate the claims that had been made.

e. Members were informed of recent decisions of the planning inspector at this site, including the 
existing opening hours, to inform their decision making.

f. Officers recommend grant subject to conditions.
g. Questions for Clarification
h. Members were directed to the section of the report that set out planning considerations  and 

those of licensing objectives which, whilst overlapping, were different.  The intention is for 
planning to look to implement systems to control the type and characteristics of use of premises ; 
licensing regime controls how such uses are operated and managed by the operators.

i. Debate
j. Members disputed whether the planning authority  should take the view that the operation of a 

business would not add to the overall noise nuisance of an area because of the existing noise from 
the surrounding area  as a result of  the night time economy.

k. Members discussed the need for licensing matters to be resolved; that is the allegations properly 
investigated by the Responsible Authorities; before any decision was made on the application.

l. Officers advised that the licensing and planning processes must be considered separately on their 
own merits and cannot be dependant on each other.

m. Members asked if it would be appropriate for the application to be deferred whilst an 
enforcement investigation was carried out to establish the lawful use of the premises as it was 
currently being operated.

n. Chair moved that committee consider officer recommendation to approve the application.  
Members failed to propose a vote in support of this.  The chair then moved for the application to 
be deferred.

o. Cllr Goggin, seconded by Cllr Windows, proposed that the application be deferred for 6 weeks to 
allow for the planning enforcement investigation  to conclude and submit their findings.

p. When put to the vote
q. Resolved (9 for: 0 against: 0 abstention) that the application be deferred for 6 weeks to await the 

outcome of a planning enforcement investigation into the  operation of the business.

12.19/03178/F 6-8 Belgrave Hill (also known as Land on North Side of Belgrave Hill) Bristol 
BS8 2UA

Councillor Clive Stevens stood down from Committee at the start of the public forum presentation and 
took no part in debate or the decision making process.

Page 11



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the 
report for this item highlighting the following:

a. The application is a resubmission following refusal of application no:18/02901/F; for the 
construction of two, class use C3 dwellings and associated external alterations in Clifton 
Conservation Area; a former quarry site; on a narrow piece of land with a number of challenges.

b. The current application addresses the two areas of concern that resulted in its refusal in January 
2019 with the following changes detailed in the report, in brief:

 Space Standards: the plans have been redrawn so each proposed house has a one 
bedroom and a study.  This meets the national space standards for dwelling size overall, 
minimum bedroom width and minimum storage requirements but not the minimum floor 
area for a double bedroom.  With a restricted site the applicant is unable to increase the 
overall size of the dwellings.  Conditions could not be applied to prevent the marketing of 
the property as two bedrooms. Officers have therefore assessed the proposed dwellings as 
2-bedroom houses, which do not meet the national space standards.

 Fire appliance access: – the swept path analysis confirmed that fire appliances would gain 
access by reversing fire vehicles along Quarry Steps and then reverse into Quarry Road to 
where a fire hydrant is located within the required 45meters of the site as required by 
Manual for Streets guidance; A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is recommended restricting 
parking at the junction and also immediately outside the site to ensure that emergency 
vehicles are not impeded.

c. Officer recommendation is approval together with conditions set out in the report and 
amendment sheet.

d. Question for Clarification
e. Members were advised that the approach taken by the Developers in altering plans to re-

designate one of the bedrooms as a study, was not one that officers supported but as officers 
previously advised, in their opinion it would comply with the general policy requirement under 
Policy BCS18 as per the approved 2014 application.

f. The Fire Authority were consulted on the previous application and advised that they do not 
comment specifically on individual planning applications, but they advised the general 
considerations to be taken into account- which are those set out within the Manual for Streets. 
The current application has been assessed on that basis.

g. With the possible introduction of new traffic regulations to support fire appliances access it was 
hard to determine exactly how many parking spaces would be lost.   Introducing parking 
restrictions at the junction corner would impact 2/3 vehicles, with the possible loss of 4/5 directly 
along the frontage of the site. The officer did not agree with the public forum statement that 
suggested that the proposal would result in the loss of 10-20 parking spaces. 

h. Debate
i. Members were satisfied that the issue of access for fire appliances had been worked through but 

could not support the action taken by the developers to meet the requirements of the space 
standards policy.  Noting that conditions could not be applied to restrict the marketing of the 
dwellings and to prevent future owners using the ‘study’ as a bedroom.

Page 12



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

j. The Chair moved that committee first consider whether to support officer recommendation to 
approve the application.  Cllr M Davies proposed approval however no member seconded the 
motion.

k. The Chair moved that committee defer the application on the grounds that the space standards 
had not been met.  He looked to committee to support but the motion was not seconded.

l. Cllr Wright, seconded by Cllr Smith, moved that committee vote against officer recommendation 
and refuse the application on the grounds that the proposal failed to comply with the Nationally 
Described Space Standards.

m. When put to the vote
n. Resolved: (8 for: 1 against: 0 abstention) That the application be refused on the grounds that the 

Nationally Described Space Standards had not been met.

13.19/01817/F 2 Moon Street and 2-18 Stokes Croft Bristol BS1 3PR

Councillor Mike Davies stood down from Committee at the start of the public forum presentation and 
took no part in debate or the decision making process.

The Head of Development Management and his representative gave a presentation and summarised the 
report for this item highlighting the following:

a. The application is for the demolition of all buildings and mixed use development; proposing the 
construction of a building up to 8-storeys forming a perimeter block surrounding a central 
courtyard and buildings of 7-storeys stepping down to 6 storeys; the proposed accommodation 
would comprise of 241 Student bedrooms across 42 Cluster flats.

b. Photographs of the local area; design plans and layout together with an overview of the report 
were shared with Committee during the presentation.

c. A summary of the results of the consultation was given; that included comments from the patrons 
of the nightclub that would be demolished; assertions had been made about the significance of 
the nightclub to the music scene and as a community facility; this was considered but it was noted 
that the locality had a number of music venues that would continue to support the music culture; 
that it was not proven that the nightclub was a community space.

d. Comments on the appropriateness of student accommodation in that locality; there is an 
emerging local plan policy on student accommodation but it is still in development therefore 
Committee could add no weight to this in the decision-making; advised that recent application 
refused by committee for a Student development on Wilder Street, next to this proposal, was 
allowed on appeal by the Inspector who commented in his findings that ‘ there are no absolute 
limits in what would represents a harmful concentration’.

e. The report set out 6 reasons with an additional reason given on the amendment sheet, totalling 7 
for the officer recommendation for refusal.

f. Questions for Clarification
g. Committee asked why the application had been submitted with this many unresolved issues; that 

the proposal overall was of fundamental concern covering the land stability; massing scale and 

Page 13



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

design; impact on Stokes Croft conservation area; the level of redesign required was such that the 
proposal when considered by committee would act to give direction to the developers on the 
steps required to mitigate the concerns detailed in the report.

h. Debate
i. It was proposed by Cllr Breckels and seconded by Cllr Stevens that committee support the officer 

recommendation and vote to refuse the application.
j. Although it was accepted that the loss of the nightclub was not a reason for refusal, this issue had 

to be kept under review across the city otherwise it could be “death by a thousand cuts”
k. On being put to the vote
l. RESOLVED: (9 for: 0 against: 0 abstentions) that the application be refused on the 7 grounds laid 

out in the report.

14.Date of Next Meeting

Meeting ended at 9.25 pm

CHAIR  __________________

Page 14



REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE

LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE A

20 November 2019

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Householder appeal

Date lodged

Text0:1 Westbury-on-Trym 
& Henleaze

53 Fallodon Way Bristol BS9 4HT 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed garage at side of house. 06/08/2019

Text0:2 Lockleaze 657 Muller Road Bristol BS5 6XS 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed dropped kerb, removal of front wall and creation of 
parking area.

02/09/2019

Text0:3 Cotham 16 Clare Road Cotham Bristol BS6 5TB

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Demolition of existing rear extension and replacement with 
new rear and side extension, replacement of existing roof 
materials with natural slate and internal alterations to existing 
dwelling including addition of first floor bathroom window.

10/10/2019

Text0:4 Westbury-on-Trym 
& Henleaze

11 Reedley Road Bristol BS9 3SR 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Double storey and single storey rear extension and single 
storey front and side extensions. Resubmission.

04/11/2019

Text0:5 Cotham 24 Cotham Grove Bristol BS6 6AN 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Traditional metal balcony, accessed from the new kitchen at 
ground floor level. Metal steps leading down to the back 
garden at basement level. Privacy screens to each end of the 
balcony. Alteration of ground floor rear window into French 
door to access balcony.

04/11/2019

Page 1 of 611 November 2019 Page 15

Agenda Item 5



Text0:6 Avonmouth & 
Lawrence Weston

66 Portview Road Bristol BS11 9JU 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Erection of two storey and single storey side extension. 04/11/2019

Text0:7 Avonmouth & 
Lawrence Weston

13 Hallen Drive Bristol BS9 2NU 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Application for a two storey side extension. 07/11/2019

Text0:8 Westbury-on-Trym 
& Henleaze

84 Falcondale Road Bristol BS9 3JZ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Demolition of side garage and proposed two storey side and 
single storey rear extension including X5 front and rear roof 
lights.

08/11/2019

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Informal hearing

Date of hearing

Text0:9 Central Trust Headquarters Marlborough Street City Centre Bristol 
BS2 8CC 

Committee

Appeal against refusal

Outline planning application to consider Access and Scale 
(with Appearance, Landscaping and Layout reserved) for the 
demolition of all existing structures and the erection of a 
hospital transport hub, comprising a 400-space Cycle Centre, 
820-space hospital-only car park, hospital bus drop-off point 
and associated works (Major).

21/01/2020

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Written representation

Date lodged

Text0:10 Hengrove & 
Whitchurch Park

1 Swainswick Bristol BS14 0AH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed attached self-contained dwelling house. 19/07/2019

Text0:11 Westbury-on-Trym 
& Henleaze

1 Whytes Close Bristol BS9 3HU 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Erection of 1 detached dwelling house. 07/08/2019

Page 2 of 611 November 2019 Page 16



Text0:12 Eastville 435 Fishponds Road Fishponds Bristol BS16 3AP

Appeal against non-determination

Roof extension to existing garage to create gym and games 
room for household use.

07/08/2019

Text0:13 Stockwood 12 Swane Road Bristol BS14 8NQ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed erection of 1 no 3 bedroom dwelling. 14/08/2019

Text0:14 Southmead 533 Southmead Road Bristol BS10 5NG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Erection of two storey building to provide a 1 bedroom 
dwelling unit.

21/08/2019

Text0:15 St George West Land To The Rear 324 Church Road, And Of Flats 1-3, 2 
Beaconsfield Road St George Bristol BS5 8AJ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed residential unit. 27/08/2019

Text0:16 Ashley First Floor Flat 17 Belmont Road Montpelier Bristol BS6 5AW

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Construction of a rear dormer roof extension, to provide a 
third bedroom and a en-suite for the first floor flat.

27/08/2019

Text0:17 Horfield 37 Wellington Hill Bristol BS7 8SP 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Two storey side and rear extension to create a new dwelling 
within the corner plot. Single storey rear extension to existing 
dwelling. The front garden to No.37 will be re modelled to 
provide a further off street parking space for the existing 
property (self build).

27/08/2019

Text0:18 Central 35 - 37 Stokes Croft Bristol BS1 3PY 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for the installation of external 
roller shutters and associated shutter housing structures to 
the front of the property.

30/08/2019

Text0:19 Eastville 140 Fishponds Road Eastville Bristol BS5 6PT 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement appeal for development to create and turn flat 
roofed rear extension to outdoor amenity area.

20/09/2019

Page 3 of 611 November 2019 Page 17



Text0:20 Lawrence Hill 16 Feeder Road Bristol BS2 0SB 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Replacement of existing 1no illuminated 96-sheet 
advertisement with 1no illuminated digital LED display.

30/09/2019

Text0:21 Ashley Mary Seacole Court 110 Mina Road Bristol BS2 9TP 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Extension to existing block of flats: to erect two new storeys 
on top of existing two storeys split in to two levels (additional 
9 units, 7 in a third storey & 2 in a fourth storey, set back from 
the edge of the building (Resubmission of application 
18/05704/F).

11/10/2019

Text0:22 Hengrove & 
Whitchurch Park

22 Gilda Parade Bristol BS14 9HY 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Outline application for proposed block of two flats - Approval 
sought  for Layout.

14/10/2019

Text0:23 Westbury-on-Trym 
& Henleaze

22 Devonshire Road Bristol BS6 7NJ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Conversion of an existing HMO back to a single dwelling 
house plus a gate and shed to the garden.

14/10/2019

Text0:24 Stoke Bishop 22 Julian Road Bristol BS9 1LB 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for a 
Proposed use or development. Single storey rear extension.

22/10/2019

Text0:25 Clifton 7A Richmond Hill Avenue Bristol BS8 1BG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed demolition of existing side extension and 
replacement with a one and a half storey side extension, and 
various external alterations to the building new/altered 
openings.

23/10/2019

Text0:26 Clifton 7A Richmond Hill Avenue Bristol BS8 1BG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed demolition of existing side extension and 
replacement with a one and a half storey side extension, and 
various external alterations to the building new/altered 
openings.

23/10/2019

Page 4 of 611 November 2019 Page 18



Text0:27 Filwood 3 St Whytes Road Bristol BS4 1RX 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

New 2 bedroom dwelling with off street parking, bin store and 
cycle storage.

24/10/2019

Text0:28 Lawrence Hill Land Rear Of Temple Trading Estate Cole Road Bristol  

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Erection of a structure to support 2no. 12m wide x 3m high 
LED digital displays.

30/10/2019

Text0:29 Hillfields 30 Hillfields Avenue Bristol BS16 4JR 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Full Planning Permission (Re-submission) for the 
construction of a single two-bedroom house with vehicular 
parking, refuse store and cycle racks on land to the side of 30 
Hillfields Avenue (Self Build)

01/11/2019

Text0:30 Clifton Down 34 Oakfield Grove Bristol BS8 2BL 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed side arched extension, providing additional living 
space to the existing first/second floor maisonette.

05/11/2019

Text0:31 Windmill Hill 17 Shepton Walk Bristol BS3 5NU 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed conversion of double garage to a one bed dwelling 
house.

05/11/2019

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

List of appeal decisions

Decision and 
date decided

Text0:32 Brislington East Land At St Anne's Road St Annes Road St Annes Bristol  

Discontinuance notice appeal in respect of advertisement 
hoarding.

Appeal dismissed

09/10/2019

Text0:33 Bishopston & 
Ashley Down

18C Merton Road Bristol BS7 8TL 

Committee

Appeal against refusal

Construction of 1no. store and 2no. single storey B1 or B8 
business units.

Appeal allowed

09/10/2019

Page 5 of 611 November 2019 Page 19



Text0:34 Horfield 36 Filton Avenue Bristol BS7 0AG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed no.3 bed, detached two storey single dwelling 
house, with cycle and bin storage and vehicle access onto 
Beaufort Road.

Appeal dismissed

08/11/2019

Text0:35 Clifton Down 72 Alma Road Bristol BS8 2DJ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Conversion and alteration of garage to dwelling to the rear of 
72 Alma Road, Clifton.

Appeal dismissed

24/10/2019

Text0:36 St George 
Troopers Hill

4 Bellamy Close Bristol BS15 3AZ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Hip to gable roof extension, with front and rear dormer roof 
extensions.

Appeal dismissed

10/10/2019

Text0:37 Ashley 79 Effingham Road Bristol BS6 5AY 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Alteration to a flat roof of a single-storey rear extension to 
create outside terrace. [A mono-pitched roof will be 
constructed at the further extent of the roof].

Appeal dismissed

10/10/2019

Page 6 of 611 November 2019 Page 20



REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE

LIST OF ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED

Item Ward Address, description and enforcement type Date issued

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE A

20th November 2019

Redland Top Floor Flat 19 Dundonald Road Bristol BS6 7LN 30/10/2019

Erection of terrace/balcony without planning 
permission.

Enforcement notice

1

Southmead 533 Southmead Road Bristol BS10 5NG 09/10/2019

Without the grant of planning permission the 
erection of an outbuilding on land to the rear of 1A 
Felstead Road and 533A Southmead Road

Enforcement notice

2

Southville 260 Coronation Road Bristol BS3 1RS 09/10/2019

Use of domestic garage to rear for commercial 
vehicle repair business.

Enforcement notice

3

Windmill Hill 72 Bedminster Road Bristol BS3 5NP 09/10/2019

Extension works not as per planning permission 
16/07030/H (which consented two storey side and 
single storey front and rear extension)

Enforcement notice

4

11 November 2019

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



E:\Bristol\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\7\6\AI00018674\$4kz0nji5.rtf 12/11/2019  08:10

Development Control Committee A
20 November 2019
Report of the Director: Development of Place

Index

Planning Applications

Item Ward Officer 
Recommendation

Application No/Address/Description

1 Southville Refuse 18/05310/F - St Catherines Place Shopping 
Centre East Street Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG
 
Full planning application for comprehensive 
redevelopment of the site to provide mixed use 
development comprising 205 residential 
dwellings (Class C3), 1288sqm of new retail, 
leisure and commercial space including a 
cinema (Class A1, A3, D2), refurbishment of 
existing retail facilities together with parking and 
amenity space, vehicular access, servicing 
arrangements, public realm, landscaping and 
associated works. (Major).

index
v5.0514

Page 22

Agenda Item 8



11/11/19  10:44   Committee report 

 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
 

 
ITEM NO.  1 
 

 
WARD: Southville   
 
SITE ADDRESS: 

 
St Catherines Place Shopping Centre East Street Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 
 

 
APPLICATION NO: 

 
18/05310/F 
 

 
Full Planning 

DETERMINATION 
DEADLINE: 

27 March 2019 
 

Full planning application for comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide mixed use 
development comprising 205 residential dwellings (Class C3), 1288sqm of new retail, leisure and 
commercial space including a cinema (Class A1, A3, D2), refurbishment of existing retail facilities 
together with parking and amenity space, vehicular access, servicing arrangements, public realm, 
landscaping and associated works. (Major). 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
Refuse 

 
AGENT: 

 
GVA 
St Catherine's Court 
Berkeley Place 
Bristol 
BS8 1BQ 
 

 
APPLICANT: 

 
Firmstone Consortia One Limited 
 
 

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date. 
 
LOCATION PLAN: 

  
   Page 23

Agenda Item 8a



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Background 
 
The St. Catherine’s Place site forms one of five key sites identified within the Bedminster 
Green Framework. In response to a request from the Council for a holistic overview for the 
Bedminster Green area, the developers (including the developer for this application) 
produced a Framework, which was reported to and noted by Cabinet in March 2019. The 
Framework refers to this site as ‘Plot 2: St. Catherine’s Place’. 
 
The Framework is a high-level document that sets broad principles and parameters to help 
shape and integrate individual site-based development proposals, as they come forward 
through the planning and design process to create a high quality new urban quarter. In terms 
of planning decisions, the Bedminster Green Framework is a material planning consideration 
in relation to determination of planning applications for each site in the Bedminster Green 
area. 
 
The application site 
 
The southern part of the application site is subject to an extant planning permission 
(application reference 13/05616/P) which was granted in 2017 for the demolition of existing 
buildings onsite and the development of a mixed-use scheme including 188no. residential 
units and 600sqm commercial floorspace.  
 
The site as existing is in mixed-use comprising of commercial floorspace with residential 
maisonettes above. In 2017, two applications were approved (reference: 17/03849/COU and 
17/05699/F) for the conversion of the former office block on the site to form 40 new dwellings 
and the extension of this building upwards by two storeys to provide a further 14no. 
residential dwellings. 
 
The application 
 
This application submitted by Firmstone Consortia One Limited is for: 
 
“Comprehensive redevelopment of the site to provide mixed use development comprising 
205 residential dwellings (Class C3), 1288sqm of new retail, leisure and commercial space 
including a cinema (Class A1, A3, D2), refurbishment of existing retail facilities together with 
parking and amenity space, vehicular access, servicing arrangements, public realm, 
landscaping and associated works.” 
 
The 205 residential dwellings are proposed within five no. development Blocks A to E, which 
range from 3-16 storeys in height. The existing commercial units within St. Catherine’s Place 
are proposed to be refurbished, with new commercial units proposed within the ground floors 
of Block A and Block B. The existing maisonettes would be retained and do not form part of 
the application.  
 
Response to consultation from the public and interest groups/organisations 
 
Pre-application consultation with the local community was carried out by the applicant in July 
2017, September 2017 and March 2018.  
 
This planning application has been subject to two rounds of 21-day consultation with the 
public, interest groups, organisations, external consultees and internal consultees.  

Page 24



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

 
In response to the application as submitted in October 2018, a total of 341 public comments 
were received. 221 of these were in objection, whilst a total of 104 responses were in 
support of the scheme.  
 
Following the submission of a revised scheme in September 2019, a further round of 
consultation was undertaken and a total of 112 responses have been received to date. 85 of 
which were in objection to the scheme with a further 25 submitted in support of the scheme.  
 
Objections to the scheme raised: concerns about the scale and massing of the development; 
concerns about the impact upon residential amenity through overshadowing, overlooking 
and overbearing; concerns about overdevelopment; objection to the lack of affordable 
housing; concerns about traffic impacts and parking; and concerns about health and safety 
of residents living in high-rise. 
 
Comments in support of the scheme included: support for development of a cinema; the 
need for regeneration in the area and benefits to local community and businesses on East 
Street.  
 
The scheme has been referred to Development Control Committee by the Local Ward 
Councillor and objections have been received from the BS3 Planning Group, the Windmill 
Hill and Malago Community Planning Group and the Bristol Civic Society. The Bedminster 
Improvement District (BID) has issued a response in support of the scheme.  
 
Response to consultation from external / internal consultees 
 
In terms of external consultees, the Environment Agency (EA) has objected to the 
application, however final comments are to be provided by way of the Amendment Sheet. 
The original comments raised objections to the scheme on the basis that the application fails 
to demonstrate that the development can be made safe from flood risk for its lifetime taking 
into account the impacts of climate change and that insufficient consideration has been 
given to addressing contamination in respect of risks to controlled waters. 
 
In respect of internal consultees, objections have been received from City Design Group 
(CDG), Transport Development Management (TDM), the Tree Officer and the Flood Risk 
Team.  
 
CDG comments on the revised scheme have raised a number of fundamental concerns 
relating to: the overdevelopment of the site; height, scale and massing; residential amenity; 
the quality of outdoor space; and the public realm. The current proposals are considered to 
have ‘maximised’ rather than ‘optimised’ densities, and as such have negatively impacted on 
related goals of successful placemaking, relating to context and liveability; representing an 
over-intense development of the site. 
 
An objection has been raised by Transport Development Management (TDM) in relation to 
the conclusion of the Strategic Transport Assessment (STA), the location of the northbound 
bus stop and the completion of a General Arrangement Plan. Concerns were also raised 
about the lack of sufficient frontage and how this ties into the A38 highway scheme, the lack 
of a sufficient servicing strategy and insufficient measures in regard to disabled car parking 
and cycle parking.  
 

Page 25



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Concerns have been raised by the Flood Risk Team with regards to insufficient information 
being submitted in relation to drainage. A preferred SuDS solution needs to be provided 
demonstrating reduced run off rates.  
 
The Tree Officer has objected to the proposed development on the basis that the proposed 
development seeks to remove 7 trees, 3 of which are category A & B trees. No mitigation is 
proposed for the loss of these significant trees that contribute to the wider amenity of the 
area.  
 
Responses have been provided by internal consultees covering: Nature Conservation; 
Contaminated Land; Environmental Health; Economic Development; Archaeology; 
Sustainable Cities; and Air Quality. All consultees have reviewed the technical information 
provided and raise no objection subject to conditions requested. 
 
Key Issues 
 
The Committee Report is structured into seven Key Issues (A – G): 
 
Key Issue A) Principle: The principle of residential and commercial use on the site has been 
established through the extant consent granted in 2017 (application reference: 13/05616/P).  
 
The proposal to provide 205no. dwellings is considered to be acceptable in land use terms 
and would contribute positively to the stock of housing in Bristol in accordance with policies 
BCS5. The principle of enhancing the existing retail offer and providing new retail, leisure 
and food and drink uses within a defined town centre, is wholly supported by and in 
accordance with policies BCS7, DM7 and DM8. 
 
Key Issue B) Affordable Housing: The recommendation in respect of Affordable Housing 
provision is that the application be refused, as the proposed development fails to make an 
appropriate contribution towards the provision of affordable housing and is therefore contrary 
to Core Strategy Policy BCS17.  
 
Key Issue C) Design: This details the concerns of CDG relating to public realm, outdoor 
amenity and play, internal configuration and the overall height, scale and massing. The 
scheme is not supported in design terms. 
 
Key Issue D) Amenity: Details how the applications proposals would result in an 
unacceptable impact upon the amenity of existing and future residents in terms of 
overshadowing and overlooking, contrary to Policies BCS21 and DM29. 
 
Key Issue E) Transport and Highways: On the basis of the information provided to date, 
TDM object to the application. This provides details of the TDM points of objection: 
compliance / fit with the A38 corridor works has not been demonstrated; failure to agree a 
package of s106 contributions; insufficient disabled car parking provision and cycle parking 
provision; failure to confirm / demonstrate servicing requirements; and submitted Travel Plan 
unacceptable 
 
Key Issue F) Contamination, Flood Risk, Drainage and Air Quality: Detailing the effect of the 
proposal on contaminated land and air quality, as well as the objection on controlled waters / 
flood risk grounds by the EA and the objection on sustainable drainage systems by the Flood 
Risk Team. 
 

Page 26



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Key Issue G) Sustainable Design: Sets out the sustainability and energy strategy for the 
application proposals. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The applicant has requested that a decision be made on the revised details submitted in 
September 2019 (and further details submitted in October 2019).  
 
The application is recommended to Members for Refusal for the following reasons: 
 
1. The proposed development fails to provide a sufficient level of affordable housing.  
 
2. The proposed development would be unacceptable in design terms and impact on 
existing residential amenity. 
 
3. The proposed development would be unacceptable in terms of transport and highways as 
the compliance with the A38 corridor works has not been demonstrated and the absence of 
an agreed package of s106 contributions. 
 
As noted, further responses are awaited and the above will be reviewed with an update 
provided to Members by way of the Amendment Sheet. 
 
  

Page 27



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site is known as ‘the ‘St Catherine’s Place’ site in Bedminster (Plot 2’ in the 
Bedminster Green Framework). It is located within Southville ward, in the south of Bristol. 
 
The land use immediately surrounding the application site is varied in nature, including 
residential, retail, light industrial, car parking and green space. The Bedminster railway 
station is located approximately 200m to the south of the site. 
 
The north of the site is on the boundary of the Bedminster Conservation Area, which 
includes the retail units fronting onto East Street. One of these, No. 57 East Street, is 
identified as an unlisted building of merit in the Bedminster Conservation Area Appraisal. 
There are no buildings, structures or monuments on the site which are subject to statutory or 
local listing.  
 
The site is located almost entirely within Flood Risk Zone 2, although a small area in the far 
west is located in Flood Risk Zone 1. The site is also located within an Air Quality 
Management Area. 
 
The application site is located on the inside of the curved highway of the A38 Dalby Avenue 
such that it is bounded to the south and east by the road. To the north, the site partially 
fronts onto East Street, the local town centre and high street of the Bedminster area. The 
site is also partially bound to the north by existing retail and commercial properties which are 
not within the boundary of development. The west of the site is bound by residential and 
commercial buildings fronting onto Stafford Street and Mill Lane. The application site area is 
approximately 1.03 hectares. 
 
The site as existing is in mixed use comprising of commercial floorspace with residential 
maisonettes above. The majority of the commercial units are vacant or underused. The 
residential maisonettes are not within the applicant’s ownership and therefore do not form 
part of the development proposals. The site also contains St Catherine’s House, a former 
office building recently converted to residential units by the applicant through implementation 
of two separate applications. The first application (reference: 17/03849/COU) sought prior 
approval for the conversion of the office block to 40no. dwellings, while the second 
application (reference: 17/05699/F) extended the building upwards by two storeys to provide 
a further 14no. residential dwellings.  
 
The southern part of the application site is subject to an extant planning permission 
(application reference 13/05616/P) which was granted in 2017 following the signing of a 
section 106 agreement. This consent granted permission for the demolition of existing 
buildings onsite and the development of a mixed-use scheme including 188no. residential 
units, approximately 600sqm commercial floorspace and landscaping, parking, cycle 
parking, public realm and ancillary plant/refuse space. This development proposed to 
construct two buildings of 9 storeys and 16 storeys in height. 
 
It should be noted that it is considered that the extant planning permission could no longer 
be implemented as approved due to the conversion of the St. Catherine’s House office 
building to residential use under the Prior Approval (17/03849/COU) and planning 
permission (17/05699/F) described above. The extant planning permission proposed to 
demolish the St. Catherine’s House office building as part of the development. The 
subsequent retention, conversion and occupancy of this building in residential use needs to 
be considered as part of any application coming forward on the site. 
 

Page 28



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
17/05699/F - Two storey extension and external alterations to St Catherine's House to 
provide an additional 14 residential units. Granted subject to condition(s). 
 
17/03849/COU - Prior approval for the change of use from office floor space within use 
Class B1(a) to residential accommodation falling within Class C3 (40.no. Flats). Prior 
Approval Given. 
 
13/05616/P - Hybrid outline application for demolition of existing buildings on the site and 
phased redevelopment of site, comprising full application for Phase 1 and outline application 
for Phase 2. Full details provided for Phase 1 comprising: up to 45 residential units in a 
ground plus 8 storeys building, with up to 401.9 sq m GIA of flexible commercial floorspace 
(falling within Use Classes A1 - A5, B1 and D1) at ground floor level and associated space, 
cycle storage, refuse storage, plant, servicing, ancillary storage, public realm at lower ground 
floor and ground floor level. Outline details for Phase 2 to comprise up to 143 residential 
units in a building up to ground plus 15 storeys in height and 203.5 sq m GIA of flexible 
commercial floorspace (falling within Use Classes A1 - A5, B1 and D1) at ground floor level 
and associated space for parking, cycle parking, refuse storage, plant, servicing, ancillary 
storage lower ground floor and ground floor level. Details of access, scale and layout to be 
determined at the outline stage with details of appearance and landscaping to be determined 
in Reserved Matters applications. Granted subject to condition(s). 
 
APPLICATION 
 
The application, as per the revised plans submitted in September 2019, seeks full planning 
permission for the construction of: 

 A total 205no. residential dwellings contained within 5no. ‘development blocks’ 
(Blocks A-E) 

 844sqm GIA of new build commercial floorspace including a new cinema (Use 
Classes A1, A3, D2) 

 Refurbishment and reformatting of existing retail facilities (2500sqm) 

 27no. car parking spaces 

 347no. cycle parking spaces 

 New public realm and hard/soft landscaping  
 
The dwellings proposed within the scheme would comprise of: 

 76no. 1 bedroom, 2 person dwellings 

 8no. 2 bedroom, 3 person dwellings 

 114no. 2 bedroom, 4 person dwellings 

 7no. 3 bedroom, 5 person dwellings 
 
Block A would contain 142 dwellings (up to 16 storeys) with ground floor commercial uses. 

 1 bed 2 person: 36 

 2 bed 3 person: 2 

 2 bed 4 person: 97 

 3 bed 5 person: 7 
 
Block B would contain 23 dwellings (8 storeys) with a commercial unit at ground floor level. 

 1 bed 2 person: 18 

 2 bed 3 person: 5 
 

Page 29



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Block C would contain 13 dwellings (4 storeys) 

 1 bed 2 person: 4 

 2 bed 4 person: 9 
 
Block D would contain 6 dwellings (2 storeys above existing ground floor retail) 

 1 bed 2person: 4 

 2 bed 4person: 2 
 
Block E would contain 21 dwellings (4 storeys above existing ground floor retail) 

 1 bed 2 person: 14 

 2 bed 3 person: 1 

 2 bed 4 person: 6 
 
The development would require the removal of 7no. trees across the site. The landscaping 
of the scheme would include amenity space for residents, including a roof terrace at the 
mezzanine and 9th floor levels of Block A. 
 
The application as originally submitted, in October 2018, sought full planning permission for 
271no. residential units within 5no. development blocks (Block A-E), as well as 929sqm new 
build commercial floorspace, including a cinema, and refurbishment of existing retail 
facilities. While Blocks B-E were proposed to be of a height between 3 and 8 storeys, Block 
A was proposed to be 22 storeys and would contain the majority of residential dwellings 
(208). 
 
The current proposals, submitted as a revision to the application in September 2019, 
therefore primarily sought to reduce the height of Block A, with a corresponding reduction in 
the number of residential units. The layout of the site was also amended to provide for a 
future northbound bus lane along Dalby Avenue in anticipation of the A38 strategic public 
transport corridor proposals. 
 
PRE-APPLICATION COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 
 
The applicant submitted a Statement of Community Involvement with the application, which 
states that pre-application consultation with the local community was carried out between 
July 2017 and March 2018. This consisted of letters sent to community groups and local 
councillors in July 2017; a presentation to the Windmill Hill and Malago (WHaM) Planning 
Group in September 2017; and, a community consultation event held in March 2018. 
 
Flyers were distributed to approximately 1000 homes and businesses to publicise the event, 
which had an estimated attendance of 80 people. The feedback received from the event is 
provided in the Statement of Community Involvement submitted by the applicant.  
 
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this 
scheme in relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities 
protected characteristics. These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation. Overall, it is considered that the approval of this application would not 
have any significant adverse impact upon different groups or implications for the Equalities 
Act 2010. In this case the design and access to the development have been assessed with 
particular regard to disability, age and pregnancy and maternity issues. An issue has been 

Page 30



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

raised regarding a lack of disabled parking. This issue has been considered as part of the 
application. Clarification will be provided by way of the Amendment Sheet.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
In respect of Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA), in November 2019, the Local 
Planning Authority provided a Screening Opinion confirming that the development is NOT 
EIA Development requiring an Environmental Statement. 
 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION 
 
General response from the public 
 
Approximately 1580 neighbours within the vicinity of the scheme were notified by letter and a 
site notice was displayed. 
 
In response to the application as submitted in October 2018, a total of 341 public comments 
were received from 328 individuals. This includes comments received from amenity groups 
and local councillors, which are detailed fully below.  
 
Of the responses received, 221 responses were in objection to the scheme, 104 responses 
were in support of the scheme and 3 responses were neither in support nor objection. 
 
The comments in objection to the scheme raised the following concerns: 

 Scale and massing of the development, in particular the height of Block A at 22 
storeys, considered to be out of character with the local area 

 Overbearing impact on local community due to scale and massing 

 Loss of light and overshadowing of existing residents  

 Density of the proposals; concerns of overdevelopment 

 Impact of development on views and skyline 

 Architectural style and materials not in keeping with the area 

 Lack of affordable housing in the proposals, contrary to policy requirements 

 Lack of parking with resulting impact on on-street parking in neighbouring areas 

 Pressure on local services and infrastructure through such high-density development 

 Impact on existing maisonettes at St Catherine’s Place 

 Inadequate consultation between developer and local community 

 Traffic impacts and road safety concerns 

 Health and safety concerns of local residents in high rise residential, including mental 
health impacts and fire risk 

 Lack of cohesive plans overall within Bedminster Green area 

 Potential for gentrifying effects on local residents  

 Environmental impacts including flooding and sustainability of development 
 

The comments in support of the scheme cited the following reasons: 

 Support for development of a cinema as part of the scheme (particularly with 
reference to supporting a Scott Cinema like the Orpheus in Henleaze) 

 A need for regeneration in the area 

 A need for redevelopment of this specific site 

 Support for the proposed mixed uses on the site  

 Benefits to local community and businesses on East Street  

 Support for new housing  

Page 31



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

 
Following the submission of revised plans in September 2019, neighbours were re-consulted 
on the revised proposals. A total of 112 responses were received, of which 85 were in 
objection to the scheme, 25 were in support of the scheme and 2 responses were neither in 
support or objection to the scheme. 
 
The comments in objection to the scheme raised the following concerns: 

 Scale and massing of the development, considered to be out of keeping with the 
proposal’s context, and would adversely impact important skyline views from 
Windmill Hill 

 Limited parking provision and the impact on local parking, including in Windmill Hill 

 Insufficient mix of housing typologies or tenure types, such as housing for the elderly 
or families 

 Loss of light and overshadowing in relation to adjacent properties (St. Catherine’s 
House and Stafford Street) and local green space and public realm  

 Lack of affordable housing provision 

 Loss of trees  

 Impact on air quality and potential to exacerbate existing poor air quality 

 Impact on local services/social infrastructure such as GPs 
 
The comments in support of the scheme cited the following reasons: 

 Support for development of a cinema as part of the scheme  

 A need for regeneration in the area 

 Benefits to local community and businesses on East Street  
 
Response from interest groups and organisations 
 
COUNCILLOR REFERRAL  
 
Councillor Charlie Bolton referred the application to the Development Control Committee if 
the development is recommended for approval. Cllr Bolton stated objection to the proposed 
scheme due to concerns relating to: 

 lack of affordable housing 

 overdevelopment of the site and wider Bedminster Green area 

 design that is out of keeping with the existing area 

 energy use of high rise buildings (design not carbon neutral) 

 impacts of development on infrastructure and services, as well as traffic and parking 
 
[the full referral from Cllr Bolton is available on the BCC online planning portal] 
 
BS3 PLANNING GROUP – OBJECT 
 
The BS3 Planning Group object to the proposals, stating: 
 
“As a matter of principle (at his stage) we OBJECT to this application on a number of 
grounds:  
1. This is a major development yet no public consultation has taken place. This is a new 
proposal in a new context, and hence previous discussions on a similar proposal on a subtly 
different site do not hold.  
2. We reject the developers viability statement, attempting to sidestep the demand for 
affordable content. a. We invite the developer to identify other sites that it has built out 
without affordable content where a viability statement was also used and disclose the actual 

Page 32



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

return on investment compared to that suggested by preceding viability studies b. We note 
that an adjacent site does appear to be offering affordable content  
3. We were assured that a framework document for the broader Bedminster Green sites 
would precede any specific applications, We have not had sight of such a document, let 
alone the opportunity for consultation on a number of schemes that will fundamentally 
change the neighbourhood.  
4. We would welcome a study of local public services to determine that there is capacity to 
support this number of new homes and residents and/or identify sites where they may be 
built if extra capacity is required.” 
 
WINDMILL HILL AND MALAGO COMMUNITY PLANNING GROUP (WHAM) – OBJECT 
 
The Windmill Hill and Malago Community Planning Group (WHaM) object to the proposed 
scheme in its current form. While WHaM supports the principle of refurbishing the shopping 
centre, which it believes would help revitalise the town centre of Bedminster, the group has 
raised concerns relating to: 

 housing mix and lack of family accommodation 

 lack of private amenity space for residents 

 quality of the public realm due to overshadowing 

 lack of provision in the development for children or to be child-friendly design 

 height of the development and impact on views and character 

 lack of affordable housing 

 lack of green infrastructure to create wildlife corridors and mitigate air quality issues 

 flood risk concerns 

 health and safety concerns for future residents 

 lack of parking spaces 

 architectural design of insufficiently high quality 
 

[full comments from WHaM are available on the BCC online planning portal] 
 
BEDMINSTER BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BID) – SUPPORT  
 
The Bedminster BID stated:  
 
“Overall strongly in favour of development on condition: 
1. Clear, attractive, safe (active ground floors) routes connecting the Green Bus Stops and 
East St (through SCP and one other (Little Paradise / Stafford?)  
2. Metrobus diversion reviewed only when East St improves via: new demand and major 
physical improvements via s106 and CIL  
3. High environmental standards particularly through limited car ownership (given poor air 
quality) and place making encouraging attractive walkable urbanism  
4. The BID holds no views on building heights - but does have a preference for a scheme to 
be delivered quickly” 
 
THE CONSERVATION ADVISORY PANEL – GENERAL COMMENT  
 
The Conservation Advisory Panel commented: 
 
“The site was only partly in the conservation area but would have a significant impact on the 
conservation area and East Street. The Panel considered that the buildings had no 
reference to the context as all the buildings were very rectilinear and all in the same 
orientation rather than responding to the site boundaries. The proposals were out of scale 

Page 33



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

with their location. In addition, the proposals were not in accordance with the Urban Living 
SPD. The enormous new buildings would create extensive overshadowing to the north 
across the other properties on East Street.” 
 
BRISTOL CIVIC SOCIETY – OBJECT 
 
While supporting the principle of redevelopment and regeneration on the site, Bristol Civic 
Society object the application as proposed and raised concerns relating to: 

 failure of the proposals to meet the design requirements of the Urban Living SPD, 
including the requirements for tall buildings 

 failure of the proposals to demonstrate a high-quality design 

 lack of affordable housing 

 impact on views  

 the relationship of this proposal with the wider Bedminster Green area 
 
[full comments from Bristol Civic Society are available on the BCC online planning portal] 
 
Response from external consultees 
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY – OBJECTION 
 
The full response from the Environment Agency on the application as originally submitted is 
provided below: 
 
“We object to the application as submitted in respect of flood risk and risk to controlled 
waters for the reasons outlined below:  
 
1) Flood Risk  
 
The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the development can be made safe for its 
lifetime taking into account the impacts of climate change. We have reviewed the submitted 
Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (Hydrock September 2018 C-08012-C 9 October 2018) has 
not assessed the impacts blockage of the culvert upstream of the site, ‘Main River’ Malago 
would have on flood depths/levels/flow routes at the site. The application fails to 
demonstrate the safety of the development for its lifetime. In the FRA, the 1 in 200 year 
(0.5%) event has only been considered with climate change up until 2110. For the lifetime of 
the development this should be extended until 2118 and a freeboard allowance of 300mm 
should be applied. Bristol City Council, as the Lead Local Flood Authority, should be 
consulted on the surface water drainage proposals for this site. The Local Authority 
Emergency Planner, must be consulted on the flood warning and evacuation proposals for 
this site. 
 
The application as submitted is contrary to paragraph 155 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF).  
 
2) Groundwater and Contaminated Land  
 
The submitted report provided to address contamination fails to provide reassurance that the 
proposals will satisfactorily address risks to controlled waters. We have reviewed the report 
by Hydrock 'St Catherine's Place, Bedminster, Bristol - Desk Study and Ground 
Investigation' dated September 2018. The report does not give the Environment Agency the 
confidence that, in accordance with the NPPF, this development will "enhance the natural 

Page 34



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

and local environment" or that that the risks will be adequately address in accordance with 
the relevant sections concerning land contamination within the NPPF.  
 
We are concerned that the report highlights some potentially significant contamination in 
soils and groundwater. Hydrock state that this is likely associated with the wider area. 
However, this has not been adequately demonstrated as a plausible scenario. Additionally, 
based on the plan provided in Appendix E it would appear that there was poor exploratory 
hole coverage at the site, possibly due to obstructions? Despite what we feel is a less than 
adequate conceptual model and risk assessment and an apparent gap in site investigation 
data Hydrock have recommended no specific remedial action with respect to controlled 
waters and say that "as the whole site is proposed to be covered by hardstanding which will 
reduce the potential of leaching of contaminates form site and would results in a reduce 
contaminant loading within the groundwater". We do not accept this approach on the basis 
of the information available and feel that the applicant should fundamentally rethink the 
apparent gaps in site investigation and provide a plausible conceptual model and risk 
assessment. Once we have confidence that the applicant understands the risks then we can 
have confidence in any remedial approach presented, at which point we may be able to 
consider removal of our objection.  
 
The application as submitted is contrary to paragraph 178 of the NPPF.  
 
Overcoming our objection  
It may be possible for the applicant/agent to overcome our objection by submitted 
information addressing the above points to our satisfaction. This should be submitted directly 
to the local planning authority. We will provide bespoke comments within 21 days of 
receiving your formal re-consultation. General guidance Any works within 16 metres of the 
Tidal Main River Avon and Floating Harbour and 8 metres of the Main River Malago, in 
addition to planning permission will also require a Flood Risk Activity Permit from the 
Environment Agency under the Environmental Permitting Regulations. Further details can be 
found on the following link: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-
permits  
 
Note to local planning authority  
As you may be aware, the Environment Agency is developing a project to install a trash 
screen on this culvert upstream of the site which (subject to available funding) would benefit 
the proposed development by reducing blockage risk. This development offers the 
opportunity to work together to increase the certainty of installing a screen in this location. 
We are also discussing this with other plots as part of the wider Bedminster Green 
development. End 3 If you are minded to approve the application contrary to our objection 
and local/national planning policy, it is considered essential that you contact the Environment 
Agency using the details below to discuss the implications prior to determination of the 
application.” 
 
Comments from the EA in relation to the revised details is still awaited. No comment was 
provided in time for this report. An update to Members will be provided by way of the 
Amendment Sheet. 
 
BRISTOL WASTE – OBJECTION 
 
Bristol Waste have raised concern over the proposed provision within the scheme for 
residential waste and recycling storage and collection, which it states does not meet the 
recommendation levels of provision. Bristol Waste have raised concern with the location, 
access and size of the refuse areas within the scheme, including the safety and suitability of 

Page 35

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits


Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

road access for collection operatives and their vehicles. Bristol Waste have also identified 
that the scheme does not specify any refuse or recycling arrangements for the 
commercial/retail units, which must be kept separate from any residential refuse storage. 
Arrangement for existing properties on the site have also not been identified by the 
applicant. 
 
Bristol Waste consider that the Refuse Strategy submitted with the application is of 
insufficient detail and a more comprehensive Waste Management Plan should be produced.  
 
[Full comments from Bristol Waste are available on the BCC online planning portal.] 
 
HISTORIC ENGLAND – NO OBJECTION 
 
Historic England have stated no objection to the application on heritage grounds. In 
conclusion, the response stated: 
 
“Historic England has no objection to the application on heritage grounds. In determining this 
application, you should bear in mind the statutory duty of section 66(1) of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to have special regard to the desirability 
of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which they possess. section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas and section 38(6) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to determine planning applications in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.” 
 
[full comments from Historic England are available on the BCC online planning portal] 
 
Response from internal consultees 
 
CITY DESIGN GROUP – OBJECTION  
 
The City Design Group provided initial comments to the application in December 2018, 
stating that a number of concerns with the design of the scheme that were raised at pre-
application remain unresolved and that the scheme has had little positive change since pre-
application discussion. In particular, CDG raised concerns relating to: 
 
Block A 

 the design of Block A, its depth and its relationship between its three components is 
of significant concern due to its landmark building nature  

 the under-provision of public realm and approach to Block A at ground level 

 the lack of legibility between the rear element of Block A and its surroundings, due to 
its height and scale 

 CDG recommend that the number of residential units in Block A is reduced by 
approximately 42 to enable an increased set back from Malago Road. 

 
Block B 

 the height of the building has been increased by a storey from pre-application 
proposals, which CDG consider no longer creates a step-down from St. Catherine’s 
House. CDG recommend that this building is reduced by a storey and returned to the 
pre-application design 

 

Page 36



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Block C 

 concerns raised at pre-application regarding the retention or replacement of street 
trees and the closing of the service yard gap/improvement of the side elevation have 
not been resolved in the application design 

 
Blocks D and E 

 concerns were raised at pre-application relating to the opportunity of these blocks to 
add to the quality of East Street 

 CDG recommend that these blocks are reduced by at least one storey (consistent 
with advice provided on application in the vicinity of this scheme – Little Paradise, 
reference: 18/06722/F and Leicester Street, reference: 19/01639/F)  

 
Following the submission of revised plans in September 2019, the CDG provided further 
comments on the application in October 2019, setting out their final position on the 
proposals. The CDG objects to the proposed development on the basis of the development 
approach, the public realm, provision of outdoor space, children’s play, internal configuration 
and circulation and the height, scale and massing.  
 
CDG provided a summary of their comments, below: 
 
“The scheme proposes the redevelopment of the site to provide 205 dwellings arranged over 
4 to 16 storeys over 5 buildings and includes the refurbishment of existing retail units, new 
commercial space and a cinema. Please refer to previous comments for a description of the 
site and its context. The proposal has been subject to previous comments by CDG, the most 
recent of which in July 2019.  
 
The proposal is distinct from a previously consented scheme for the site 13/05616/. The 
amount of development has increased significantly and the retention/conversion of St 
Catherine’s House has fundamentally changed the nature of the site and therefore the 
manner in which redevelopment can occur. St Catherine’s House has undone site layout 
principles established by the extant permission and importantly the Bedminster Green 
Framework (BGF). When establishing the principles and opportunities for the site, the BGF 
assumed the loss of St Catherine’s House in favour of comprehensive redevelopment. 
Unfortunately, the proposal has failed to achieve an acceptable site layout that makes sense 
in relation to St Catherine’s House. The tallest element (16 storeys) now crowds the site 
resulting in unacceptable compromises in several areas including living standards for 
existing residential units, shared amenity and key public realm aspirations identified within 
the BGF.  
 
It is worth noting that the BGF was prepared following a clear policy shift in favour of higher 
densities and the acceptance of taller buildings. As such, the framework already embeds a 
high-density presumption and sets out a number of key principles required to achieve this. 
Therefore, any schemes seeking maximum development levels within the framework area 
must also achieve exemplary design quality and urban design response in relation to the 
Urban Living SPD.  
 
Urban Living assessments have highlighted how the scheme has failed to resolve higher 
density through thoughtful design, identifying a number of core concerns summarised below. 
There are also concerns with regard to contextual response by way of height, scale and 
massing and overall design quality.  
 
 

Page 37



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Development Approach  

 A ‘maximised’ development approach to the site which fails to deliver the place, 
context and liveability aspirations of urban living.  

 
Public Realm   

 Insufficient provision of new public realm and green infrastructure to support the 
intensification of the site and a failure to achieve the quality aspirations of the BGF.  

 Unresolved treatment of existing public realm to successfully embed the scheme into 
its context and create successful public spaces.  

 Public realm that lacks the qualities needed to mitigate the impacts of urban 
intensification. The scale of public realm does not meet the scale of new buildings.  

 
Provision of Outdoor Space   

 Insufficient and low quality shared amenity space, which is not successfully offset by 
the provision of onsite public realm or proximity to public space.  

 
Children’s Play   

 Limited indication of how children have been considered in the design. The only 
meaningful amount of space accessible to children is in Block A. Block B, C, D and E 
will be forced to rely on access to public realm and offsite provision.  

 
Internal Configuration and Circulation  

 Unresolved internal configuration which fails to meet recommended liveability criteria. 

 Significant negative sunlight/ daylight impact on existing dwellings. 
 
Height Scale and Massing  

 Unresolved scale, massing and architectural treatment which fails to appropriately 
respond to the existing character and the emerging context of which St Catherine’s 
House now forms a part.” 

 
Conclusions/Recommendations  
 
Whilst St Catherine’s Place sustainable location and current low intensity usage, lends itself 
to a more intense form of development as part of a wider regeneration effort, there is a 
concern that the current proposals have ‘maximised’ rather than ‘optimised’ densities, and as 
such have negatively impacted on related goals of successful placemaking, relating to 
context and liveability; therefore representing an over-intense development of the site. The 
comments above highlight how the scheme departs from Local Plan policies and Urban 
Living SPD guidance, as well as the Bedminster Green Framework. As such a 
recommendation for approval could not be supported on design grounds. 
 
[full comments from the City Design Group are available on the BCC online planning portal] 
 
TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT – OBJECTION 
 
TDM consider this has been brought to committee prematurely and therefore cannot 
recommend approval in the absence of a completed Strategic Transport Assessment (STA) 
for the entirety of Bedminster Green. 
 
The STA is being undertaken by PBA consultants on behalf of the wider Bedminster Green 
consortium (also including Dandara, A2 Dominion and Deeley Freed) and will confirm: 
- an agreed corridor improvement scheme for the A38 Malago Road 

Page 38



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

- an agreed series of options for a segregated cycle route on Whitehouse Lane, and 
- an agreed package of section 106 contributions towards: 

- Restrictive parking measures in the surrounding area (potential RPS) 
- Travel Planning, Management, Engagement and promotion 
- The provision of electric-powered car club vehicles 
- Other impacts or accessibility requirements arising from the STA. 

 
TDM is confident these matters can be resolved but unfortunately this will not be in time for 
20th November. For the benefit of committee members, the current position on the above 
(and other internal site matters) is provided below: 
 
A38 Malago Road Corridor Improvement scheme 
 
TDM have been working collectively with the Bedminster Green (BG) developers and PBA 
on their evolving application proposals and the subsequent A38 highway corridor design. 
The objectives of the A38 improvements are required on the basis of the increased trips 
generated across the entirety of the 1,000+ residential dwellings that are proposed and the 
policy requirements to maximise sustainable travel and minimise negative impacts upon 
public health. 
 
The key objectives of the A38 scheme are as follows: 
- Prioritise public transport through the delivery of additional bus lanes 
- Improve the experience of public transport user through high quality bus stop facilities 
- Ensure sufficient access for pedestrians through 3m minimum-width footways 
- Relocate / introduce new pedestrian / cycle crossings to fit future desire lines 
- Provide safe and segregate cycle linkages to the city centre via Whitehouse Lane and 
Dean Lane 
- Ensure the above interventions fit with the need to deliver a high quality and attractive 
public realm, safeguarding existing trees and providing safe and legible routes. 
- Each of the above principles is set out in the Developer Framework document as agreed 
with the Bedminster Green developers and passed by cabinet in March of this year. 
- TDM consider the A38 design is close to being finalised but at the time of writing a final 
drawing has not yet materialised and therefore is unable to inform what will be key and long-
lasting planning decisions for this area. This also means the scheme cannot be costed and 
consequently, the CIL / s106 asks cannot be confirmed, creating further uncertainty and risk 
to BCC. 
 
Elsewhere, there are unresolved matters associated with the future of Whitehouse Lane and 
Hereford Street which, whilst it does not affect the frontage of this site require to be 
discussed and reviewed with local members and other stakeholders - this cannot happen 
until the STA is finalised and shared more widely. 
 
As such, TDM has been waiting a number of months for matters to be resolved, but the 
critical matter for this site relates to the A38, the location of the northbound bus stop and the 
completion of a general arrangement. 
 
Delay to agreement of A38 scheme 
 
Previous designs for the northbound bus stop provided by the developers’ transport 
consultant located this within the bus lane alongside St Catherine’s Place. However, scrutiny 
by BCC’s highway engineers confirmed that a stationary bus located within this stop would 
obscure the visibility of the pedestrian crossing signal heads to oncoming traffic, whilst also 

Page 39



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

resulting in stationary buses obstructing non-stopping buses where the general traffic 
running lane is congested as currently occurs. 
 
Therefore, BCC TDM required this stop to move further into the St Catherine’s Place site (via 
a layby). This was raised with the BG developers in January of this year. However, the 
applicant would not agree to it. An alternative was therefore required to be proposed, and 
has been agreed in principle, but awaits sign off from the BG consortium before wider 
circulation. 
 
Until these matters are resolved and in the absence of the completed STA Transport 
Development Management are not in a position to offer a positive recommendation for this 
proposal. This is consistent with the recent application for the Pring & St Hill site. To do so 
represents an unacceptable risk to the highway authority and the ability to deliver the 
improvements bulleted above. 
 
Drawings submitted by the applicant to attempt to address this are incomplete as they do not 
indicate the full extent of the works. Therefore, no tie-in to the remainder of the A38 works 
can be demonstrated. 
 
Frontage 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the submitted site plans do not accurately demonstrate the 
proposed A38 highway corridor. A full A38 composite drawing including each of the BG 
developers’ proposed building footprints was requested at developer meetings in September 
and October. This is not a demand for detailed design but diligence on behalf of the highway 
authority who need to be assured that none of the developments will impact negatively on 
the need for each site to be accessible by sustainable modes of travel. This was requested 
for the length of the A38 between the Pring & St Hill site and Dalby Avenue. 
 
A composite plan is required that demonstrates the emerging A38 highway corridor plans 
overlaid with the St Catherine’s Place frontage plans. This composite plan must also 
demonstrate the highway extent. This will enable TDM to assess the impact the 
development would have on the A38 scheme and also understand which sections of land 
and current BCC structures will require stopping up/ dedicating as highway. It is unclear if 
the elevated section of the proposed building will be overhanging the highway given no 
composite plan has been provided. 
 
It is also unclear if the developer will be responsible for the landscaping towards the frontage 
of the site along Dalby Avenue given the highway extent is not shown. TDM would in any 
case not seek to adopt this landscaping and would therefore not be responsible for its 
maintenance. 
 
Along the northern section of the site the status of the street trees are unclear. If the trees 
are to remain, additional footway width is required along the site frontage to accommodate a 
2m footway with an additional 0.5m of buffer. TDM seek clarity on which iteration of the A38 
highway the scheme if any the proposal ties into given the status of the land to the front of 
the pumping station along this section of Dalby Avenue has yet to be finalised. 
 
Once the A38 highway corridor is in a position to be finalised the discussions between the 
applicant and TDM regarding the frontage can be concluded. 
 
 
 

Page 40



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Servicing 
 
TDM are disappointed with the lack of clarification provided on the servicing arrangements of 
the development. The largest vehicle to service the site has not been stated and TDM have 
no confidence the developer will be able to limit this given the status of the commercial units. 
 
The applicant is aware that the servicing arrangements to the rear of the site are critical for 
the design and development of the surrounding streets, including Stafford Street, Little 
Paradise and Leicester Street. However, the lack of information provided will not inform this 
piece of work. Whilst a swept path analysis is provided for an 11.4m refuse vehicle for the 
emerging scheme (by the neighbouring developer) we are yet to receive surety (and a 
written confirmation) that the St Catherine’s Place retail units will not require a larger vehicle.  
 
The detail provided in the revised Transport Statement is unhelpfully scant in this regard and 
does not answer the question. 
 
As discussed within the site-specific meeting held on the 15th August 2019 the applicant had 
stated they would be instructing their consultant to provide further assessment of the 
servicing regime of the site with specific consideration given to the link. This is critical in 
ensuring the design of the route can accommodate pedestrians, cyclists and servicing 
vehicles safely. 
 
This information cannot be conditioned until later once building lines are set and given the 
critical nature in determining the outcome of these plans. TDM urge the applicant to work 
with the developer on Plot 4 of Bedminster Green and ourselves on this matter. 
 
TDM therefore cannot support the development on the basis of failing to provide sufficient 
details of servicing requirements and as a consequence failure to inform the local 
infrastructure required between the St Catherine’s Place and Little Paradise schemes. 
 
Car Parking and prohibition of RPS permits 
 
A total of 22 residential car parking spaces are proposed within the mezzanine level car park 
within Block A, for sole use as allocated parking by the residential dwellings. No resident 
parking scheme permits will be available to occupants of the proposed development and a 
standard advice would apply in this respect, informing the RPS team not to issue these. 
 
In the event that all other matters are resolved, we would seek a condition that obligates the 
current or any future owner to inform prospective tenants or buyers of this as a matter of 
course. To not do so (as we have seen in other developments) results in future residents 
thinking they are entitled to permits, being refused and then taking up considerable officer 
time appealing / contesting this policy. 
 
Car parking for the commercial uses will be reduced, with the 21 spaces in the north east car 
park being reduced to three, and the informal parking adjacent to Mill Lane being formalised 
into 15 spaces. For the residential spaces, a condition would be required ensuring active 
electrical charging provision for 20% of these and passive provision for the remaining 80%. 
 
The updated transport statement states 3 disabled bays have been provided however it is 
unclear where these have been provided as the rear and side hatched markings have not 
been demonstrated. When applying BCC minimum standards a total of 12 disabled spaces 
are required. Furthermore TDM are unable to assess the suitability of the parking adjacent to 

Page 41



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Mill Lane is given the lack of information submitted regarding the size of the maximum 
delivery vehicle. 
 
TDM therefore cannot support the development on the basis of failing to provide sufficient 
disabled parking. 
 
Parking Impacts 
 
In this location and elsewhere in the City, the matter of overspill parking is causing 
considerable upset locally. 
 
Low vehicular parking numbers are only effective when backed by strict on-street parking 
controls in areas that are likely to suffer the most from overspill parking. Financial 
contributions are expected from this development for BCC to implement measures to avoid 
this situation. 
 
Without adequate restrictive parking measures it is without doubt that a development with 
such a low parking number would have an impact to on street parking. Areas outside of the 
residents parking zone already experience parking congestion, which is reflected in our own 
observations and by objectors in the consultation responses. Further intensification of 
parking (without mitigation) would create pinch points onto junctions and over drives, 
resulting in cars reversing, sometimes into junctions. The result would create unsafe 
overspill parking, increase the amount of footway parking and cause obstruction to the 
accessibility of pedestrians and wheelchair / pushchair users to the detriment of safety, 
contrary to policy DM23 of the Site Allocations and Development Management document. 
 
A scheme of restrictive parking measures is therefore an essential piece of mitigation for 
each of the Bedminster Green developments, and as part of this TDM expects each 
development to contribute towards BCC delivering such a scheme in this area. 
However, until the size, scale and scope of any new RPS (and extensions to existing 
operating hours) is defined within the TA, the level of contribution cannot be calculated at 
this time, although the BG developers have been briefed on the basis of expecting a total 
outlay of up to £900,000 based on 2015 resource costs. 
 
Cycle Parking 
 
The submitted plans do not demonstrate sufficient cycle parking. The design of the cycle 
store is unclear and in any case it has not been demonstrated this store would be able to 
accommodate sufficient cycle parking numbers. As per BCC minimum standards 334 cycle 
parking spaces would be required for the residents of the development with a further 20 
provided for visitors. 
 
It is unclear how many seats the cinema will contain and therefore TDM are unable to infer 
the cycle parking standard for this use. In terms of commercial uses four spaces will be 
required, two for staff and two for visitors. 
 
Cycle parking will need to be located at various locations around the site to enable adequate 
access and parking for both visitors and residents. Sheffield Stand cycle parking is required 
on site. 
 
TDM is unable to recommend approval on the basis of the level of cycle parking shown and 
this is therefore contrary to policy. 
 

Page 42



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Travel Plan 
 
Having consulted the travel plan officer the submitted travel plan is deemed to be 
insufficient. Interim targets are required and it is also essential to agree a travel plan budget 
before any approval. The action plan needs to be updated to include sustainable travel 
vouchers such as bus/bike/car club. 
 
As part of the audit and management process BCC will need to be invited to an initial travel 
plan steering group meeting and then ongoing quarterly update meetings. Any changes to 
the action plan and budget will need to be approved by this group with approval of the local 
authority. This will need to commence at least 3 months before first occupation. 
 
As part of the audit BCC will need to see evidence that the travel plan is being implemented. 
This will include copies of invoices and copies of travel information materials. Ongoing 
monitoring over 5 years will be required to ensure targets are being met. 
 
Alternatively, Bristol City Council will undertake the implementation of the Travel Plan on the 
applicant’s behalf for an Implementation Fee of £139 per dwelling, or £32,175. By paying the 
Travel Plan Implementation Fee the developer will be released from travel planning 
obligations over a 5-year period. 
 
In the event that the applicant insists that they will undertake the travel plan, a separate 
monitoring fee will be required, and it is likely that a bond will be required to be able to be 
called in by the local authority in the event that compliance is not reached. 
 
Highway Works (s278 and Structures) 
 
As covered earlier, a scheme of developer-delivered highway works is required along Mill 
Lane, Leicester Street and Little Paradise in conjunction with Dandara on Plot 4 in order to 
access both of these developments. These works are directly related to the development 
and are required to be secured by condition and undertaken by the developer under a s278 
highway works agreement. 
 
As normal, this will require the appropriate technical approval and inspections process, the 
securing of a highway bond and the payment of technical approval and inspection fees to 
cover the council’s costs in approving and inspecting the works. Any works to the highway 
are illegal in the absence of a signed agreement and the granting of technical approval. 
Similarly, this will apply to the stopping-up / filling in of existing subway and steps on the 
northern side of the A38. TDM is unaware that sufficient discussions have taken place with 
BCC Highway Structures concerning this matter. Any excavation / fill adjacent to the 
highway being retained needs a formal structural approval through the AiP process. 
 
In relation to Mill Lane and Leicester Street, the extent to which this applicant delivers / 
designs such works has not been fully discussed with the neighbouring developer and TDM 
in sufficient detail, where this development is particularly reliant upon Mill Lane and Leicester 
Street for access. The current environment to the rear of St Catherine’s Place in this location 
is poor and this matter needs to be resolved, with works and responsibilities agreed before 
TDM would be in a position to recommend approval of this development. In the absence of 
this it is not possible to write a suitably worded condition. 
 
S106 Contributions 
 

Page 43



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

As raised previously, section 106 contributions are required for the following as discussed in 
numerous meetings between BCC, TDM and the applicant. These are summarised below: 
- Residential Parking Restrictions 
- Car Clubs and the associated infrastructure 
- Travel Plan Management / Delivery fees 
- A38 and Whitehouse Lane scheme equitable costs over and above what CIL covers 
- Additional measures arising from the outcome of the Strategic Transport Assessment 
 
Recommendation 
 
At this point in time TDM can see pathway forward that would make this development 
acceptable, subject to addressing the matters raised above. 
 
However, at this moment in time and on the basis of the information provided to date, TDM 
is unable to recommend approval of the application which should be refused on the following 
grounds: 
1) Compliance / fit with the A38 corridor works has not been demonstrated 
2) Failure to agree a package of s106 contributions 
3) Insufficient cycle parking provision 
4) Failure to confirm / demonstrate servicing requirements 
5) Submitted Travel Plan unacceptable 
  
TREE OFFICER – OBJECTION 
 
The Tree Officer stated an objection to the revised scheme: 
 
“The proposed development seeks to remove 7 trees, 3 of which are category A & B trees, 
as defined within the arboricultural report, that have sufficient merit to warrant a tree 
preservation order. 30 replacement trees or a pro-rata financial contribution of 30 X 765.21 = 
£22,956.30 is required to mitigate the loss of these trees. Currently 4 indicative trees and 5 
large shrubs have been proposed as mitigation for the loss. I do not agree with the 
comments made in section 8.3 of the Landscape and Visual Impact assessment.  
 
Bristol city council is the first Local Authority in the country to state we are in climate 
emergency and have made a commitment to increase the canopy cover within Bristol by 
25% by 2036 and to double the city’s canopy cover by 2046. This cannot be achieved on 
BCC land alone and we now require high quality tree planting schemes within private 
development to achieve this target to reduce the impact of Bristol’s climate Emergency 
statement.  
 
The proposed has made no attempt to mitigate the loss of significant trees that contribute to 
the wider amenity of the area; even though the size of the buildings are maximising the 
development potential of the site.  
 
Due to the lack of consideration of BCS9, DM15, DM17 and the Planning obligation SPD I 
strongly object to the proposal and recommend refusal on the above grounds.” 
 
NATURE CONSERVATION – COMMENT  
 
The Nature Conservation officer has commented on the application, stating: 
 
“Demolition works are proposed to buildings which have the potential to support roosting 
bats. All species of bats and their roosts are legally protected. A bat building inspection 

Page 44



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

which also includes a survey for signs of nesting birds should be undertaken by a qualified 
ecological consultant prior to the determination of this application and in accordance with 
central government guidance, the survey should not be conditioned. The bat building 
inspection survey should meet the current Bat Conservation Trust survey guidelines.”  
 
As most of buildings onsite that are not proposed to be retained have already been 
demolished, it is considered that an advisory attached to any decision would be sufficient to 
ensure that no bats or bat roosts would be affected by the proposals. 
 
FLOOD RISK TEAM – OBJECTION 
 
The Flood Risk officer has objected to the application as submitted, stating:  
 
“We have reviewed the above application and as it stands, as the Lead Local Flood 
Authority, we would object to this application. This is because the plans do not follow the 
framework flood risk assessment that was commissioned by the land owners. This should 
also follow the emerging New Urban Quarter Bedminster Green Place-Making Framework. It 
does not facilitate use of greener SuDS techniques, prioritised using the SuDS hierarchy. 
Nor does it reduce the existing site run off significantly.” 
 
In response to the revised scheme and the submission of the Flood Risk Technical Note 
(Hydrock, September 2019), the Flood Risk officer provided the following comment: 
 
On review of the Flood Risk Technical Note and Addendum, compared against the original 
comments provided below, it appears the FRA recommendations have been taken into 
account for the flood risk posed to the development.  This is deemed as a main river issue 
though so the EA’s verdict on this is most important due to their main river responsibilities. 
  
There appears to not be an update on the drainage strategy which relates to surface water 
management that would come under the responsibility of BCC as the LLFA.  We would still 
be looking for this aspect to be addressed with a preferred SuDS solution providing reduced 
run off rates. 
 
PUBLIC PROTECTION (CONTAMINATED LAND) – COMMENT 
 
The Public Protection (Contaminated Land) Officer stated:  
 
“We refer to our previous comments, with respect to human health risk assessment we are 
broadly satisfied with the information provided thus far. Soft landscaping does appear to be a 
provision within the current reiteration of the scheme therefore some remedial works are to 
take place. Further sampling has been proposed with respect to the development site in 
correspondence with the consultants at Hydrock.  
 
We are satisfied with the human health risk assessment however as the Environment 
Agency have previously objected to this application on 3rd December 2018 with respect to 
controlled waters therefore we cannot support granting of a decision at this time with respect 
to contamination as a whole.  
 
If planning is granted by the committee conditions must be applied, however we cannot 
guarantee these conditions will be satisfactory in resolving the Environment Agency 
objection.  
 
These would be the standard EA conditions: 

Page 45



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

• Remediation strategy (including risk assessment) 
• Verification 
• Reporting of unexpected contamination” 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – NO OBJECTION  
 
The proposed development supports the aim to diversify the economy within the area by 
providing a cinema and a mix of restaurants and cafes, however we would query why the 
Planning Statement does not cite Policy DM7 (Town Centre Uses) and Policy DM8 
(Shopping Areas and Frontages).  
 
The above would help to increase footfall within the area and in turn support the existing 
centre. The retention of existing retail units is supported, however there seems to be a lack 
of information regarding whether it is intended for these to be refurbished or whether they 
will remain as existing. 
 
POLLUTION CONTROL (ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH) – COMMENT 
 
The Pollution Control (Environmental Health) Officer commented as follows: 
 
“An acoustic report has been submitted with the application and this largely deals with the 
insulation of the proposed residential buildings against the existing noise environment, 
predominantly traffic, along with giving noise limits for any external plant for the 
development. I would confirm that I am happy with the contents of report with regards to 
sound insulation and ventilation strategies for the residential and the noise limits proposed 
for plant noise. 
  
The acoustic report does not however deal with the potential for noise from the commercial 
parts of the development, which includes a cinema and A3 uses, from affecting residents of 
this development or existing residents in the area. I would be happy for this information to be 
provided by condition. 
  
I also have some concerns regarding the potential for nuisance from demolition and 
construction works at the site and would therefore ask for conditions should the application 
be approved.” 
 
ARCHAEOLOGY – NO OBJECTION  
 
The Archaeology Officer stated: 
 
“This WSI is in accordance with previous discussions about the archaeology on the site. 
Therefore a pre-occupation condition to secure the completion of archaeological works in 
accordance with this WSI should be attached to any consent for development on this site.” 
 
SUSTAINABLE CITIES TEAM – COMMENT 
 
The Sustainable Cities team provided initial comment in May 2019, stating objection to the 
proposed development due to non-compliance of the proposed energy strategy with BCC 
policy. Further information was requested relating to various aspects of the energy strategy, 
including heat recovery, PV panel provision, overheating, BREEAM pre-assessment and 
construction waste management.  
 

Page 46



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

In response to the additional information, submitted in September 2019, the Sustainable 
Cities team provided the following comments: 
 
“Whilst some of the issues raised in my previous comments have been addressed there a 
number of outstanding issues which would need to be resolved prior to approval of the 
application.  
  
Energy Strategy 
  
The strategy for delivering heating and hot water may now comply with BCS14 given the 
proposal to use of CHP designed to allow connection to the heat network. However, 
according to the Energy Statement the Heating and Hot Water strategy in the residential 
units is still being developed. This needs to be clarified now and prior to approval. Further 
clarification is also required on the energy strategy in the non-residential units.  
  
Clarification is also required on discussions with the council’s Energy Services team and 
specifically the date on which heat would be required and whether BCC is proposing to 
provide a day-one connection to the heat network.  
  
BREEAM 
  
A BREEAM pre-assessment of the non-residential elements of the scheme is still required, 
to demonstrate that these are capable of achieving BREEAM Excellent. 
  
Overheating 
  
The overheating assessment provided is noted.  
  
This shows failures i.e. overheating, in bedrooms and a living room under the 2020 weather 
file and bedrooms under the 2050 weather file.  
  
The Energy Statement and design specification should be revised to show how this risk will 
be addressed in order to ensure that all rooms are resilient to overheating during the lifetime 
of the scheme.”  
 
AIR QUALITY – COMMENT 
 
The Air Quality officer has recommended that conditions are applied to any consent if 
granted. The officer’s comments in full stated: 
 
“I have reviewed the air quality assessment for this development… 
 
The assessment concludes that impact at all locations using the ADMS model is negligible 
under all scenarios. Using the AERMOD model, under a conservative scenario where road 
emissions do not improve between 2016 and 2019, a moderate impact is predicted at 2 
locations. Our monitoring data already shows that concentrations have fallen since 2016, so 
it is reasonable to work on the basis that road emissions will improve further to 2019, when 
the development opens. 
 
The scenario also includes a conservative assumption that the heating plant operates for 
every hour of the year, which is clearly unrealistic. The difference between the moderate and 
negligible impacts under these scenarios is small at 0.05 ugm-3. In practice this is a 
difference that would be undetectable by measuring instruments and because of the 

Page 47



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

conservative assumptions mentioned it is my judgement that a moderate impact will not 
arise in reality. 
 
I recommend that the mitigation measures listed in section 7.1 and Appendix A are 
conditioned, especially the minimum exit velocity for stack emissions, which should give 
even greater certainty in terms of achieving a negligible air quality impact. If this is agreed, I 
offer no objection to the development on the grounds of air quality.” 
 
[Full comments are available on the BCC online planning portal.]  
 
RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
National Planning Policy Framework – February 2019 
 
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and 
Development Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol 
Central Area Plan (Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter 
Neighbourhood Development Plan 2016, Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development 
Plan 2017, Urban Living SPD (November 2018) and Bedminster Green Framework (March 
2019). 
 
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant 
policies of the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance. 
 
KEY ISSUES 
 
A. IS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE IN PRINCIPLE?  
 
Policy BCS5 sets out that the Core Strategy (2011) aims to deliver new homes within 
Bristol's existing built up areas to contribute towards accommodating a growing number of 
people and households in the city. Between 2006 and 2026, 30,600 new homes will be 
provided in Bristol. Of these, 8,000 new homes are to be delivered in South Bristol.  
 
Policy BCS7 states that retail development and leisure/entertainment uses will be primarily 
located in or adjoining town, district and local centres as identified in the Core Strategy. It 
states that mixed-use development at accessible centres will be particularly promoted where 
it takes advantage of under-used land, and uses which contribute to the vitality, viability and 
diversity of centres will be encouraged. Active ground floor uses will be maintained and 
enhanced throughout the centres.  
 
Policy BCS7 is supported by policies DM7 and DM8 of the Site Allocations and Development 
Management Policies Document (2014), which further sets out the expectation that town 
centre uses such as retail and leisure are located within centres identified by the plan and 
should protect and enhance existing Primary or Secondary Shopping frontages. The loss of 
retail in defined centres and shopping frontages is to be resisted under all policies. 
 
Policy BCS18 of the Core Strategy supports a neighbourhood with a mix of housing tenures, 
types and sizes to meet the changing needs and aspirations of its residents. 
 
Policy BCS20 of the Core Strategy states that development should maximise opportunities 
to re-use previously developed land. 
 

Page 48



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

The proposed scheme would be situated on a brownfield mixed-use site, of which the 
existing commercial uses (retail units) are largely vacant and underused.  
 
The principle of redevelopment of the site for a mixed-use scheme including commercial and 
residential uses has been established by an extant planning permission granted in 2017 
(application reference: 13/05616/P). This permission granted consent for the construction of 
188no. residential units and approximately 600sqm commercial floorspace. 
 
Furthermore, the building known as St Catherine’s House, which sits inside the site 
boundary, has recently been redeveloped from vacant offices to 54no. residential units under 
the Prior Approval office-to-residential system (application reference: 17/03849/COU) and a 
subsequent consent (17/05699/F). 
 
In providing 205no. residential units, the proposed scheme would represent an increased 
density of development in comparison to the extant permission, however in pure land use 
terms, the proposals would not constitute a material change of use from that of the existing 
site or the scheme previously consented. The principle of residential development is 
therefore found acceptable in land use terms and would contribute positively to the stock of 
housing in Bristol in accordance with policies BCS5. 
 
In terms of housing mix, the proposed development would provide 76no. one-bedroom 
dwellings, 122no. two-bedroom dwellings and 7no. three-bedroom dwellings. This 
demonstrates that the prevailing dwelling-type would be smaller residences, rather than 
family-sized accommodation.  
 
Whilst more family sized dwellings (three-bedroom and above) would be preferred, Officers 
have considered the extant consent and the Bedminster Green Framework which notes that: 
“The Bedminster Green area is suited to smaller households due to its constrained urban 
nature close to the centre of Bristol. Provision of this nature will contribute to the housing mix 
within the wider area and provide opportunities for a range of people choosing an urban 
living lifestyle with proximity to town and city centre facilities, green space and public 
transport.” As such, the housing mix is considered to be acceptable. 
 
The proposed development also proposes to retain and enhance existing retail units on the 
site (approximately 2500sqm), while also developing 844sqm of new A1, A3 and D2 uses 
comprising a cinema, a café and retail. The site is located within the defined Bedminster 
Town Centre and Primary Shopping Area. The principle of enhancing the existing retail offer 
and providing new retail, leisure and food and drink uses within a defined town centre, is 
wholly supported by and in accordance with policies BCS7, DM7 and DM8. 
 
The proposed non-residential uses, including the cinema, are considered to be 
complimentary to the existing retail uses and considered to support both the regeneration of 
the Bedminster Town Centre and the aims of the Bedminster Business Improvement District 
(BID).  
  
It is concluded that the development is acceptable in principle.  
 
B. IS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT VIABLE, AND DOES IT PROVIDE AN 
APPROPRIATE LEVEL OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING?  
 
The proposed scheme is a mixed-use development including a significant level of residential 
accommodation that falls within Use Class C3 of the Use Classes Order, meaning that it is 
required to address the Council’s Affordable Housing Policies. 205 dwellings are proposed 

Page 49



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

and therefore the scheme is required to comply with Core Strategy Policy BCS17, which 
seeks the provision of up to 30% affordable housing (62 affordable dwellings in this case) 
from development schemes in South Bristol, subject to scheme viability. 
 
It should be noted that when the application was originally submitted, the proposed scheme 
comprised 271 dwellings. It has subsequently been reduced in scale due to design 
concerns.  
 
The approach to be taken in assessing whether a scheme is viable is set out in the Viability 
section of the government’s Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). This was most recently 
revised in May 2019. 
 
In simple terms, a development is considered to be viable if the Residual Land Value (RLV) 
of the development is greater than the Benchmark Land Value (BLV).  
 
The RLV is calculated by ascertaining the value of the completed development and 
subtracting from this all the costs involved in bringing the development forward (e.g. build 
costs, professional fees, legal costs, financing costs etc) and the developers profit. All inputs 
are based on present day costs and values. 
 
The revised PPG includes the following statement about BLV: 
 
To define land value for any viability assessment, a benchmark land value should be 
established on the basis of the existing use value (EUV) of the land, plus a premium for the 
landowner. 
 
The applicant has consistently claimed that the proposed scheme (both in its originally 
submitted and subsequently amended form) is unable to provide any affordable housing and 
has commissioned Avison Young to produce Viability Reports evidencing this. Officers 
commissioned Lambert Smith Hampton to assess the viability information and advise the 
Council as to whether the conclusion of the Avison Young Viability Reports was reasonable.  
 
The following paragraphs of this Key Issue deal with the viability of the 205-dwelling scheme; 
though it should be noted that the viability of the originally submitted 271-dwelling scheme 
was also assessed. 
 
Avison Young submitted a Viability Report in respect of the 205-dwelling scheme in 
September 2019, and this has been assessed by Lambert Smith Hampton. Many of the 
inputs into the Avison Young Viability Report are agreed, including the BLV, which is so 
often an area of disagreement. 
 
However, there are three main areas of disagreement, which make a significant difference to 
the viability of the proposed scheme and these are set out in the table below. 
 

Input Avison Young Lambert Smith Hampton 

Residential Sales Values £59,999,364 £66,916,000 

Price to be paid for 
affordable dwellings 

50% of open market value 55% of open market value 

Build Costs £43,245,227 £41,890,175 

 
Based on the Lambert Smith Hampton inputs, it is concluded that the scheme could provide 
43 affordable dwellings (21%). The Council’s need is for 77% of affordable housing to be 

Page 50



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

social rent and 23% of affordable housing to be shared ownership, and this would result in 
33 social rent dwellings and 10 shared ownership dwellings. 
 
The applicant is not prepared to offer to provide the level of affordable housing 
recommended in the Lambert Smith Hampton Report. At the point of drafting this Key Issue, 
the applicant has provided a response to the Lambert Smith Hampton evidence (which is in 
the process of being reviewed). Based on the Lambert Smith Hampton evidence, officers 
recommend that the scheme be refused as it fails to make an appropriate contribution 
towards the provision of affordable housing and is therefore contrary to Core Strategy Policy 
BCS17. 
 
However, should committee resolve to approve the proposed scheme with no affordable 
housing provision, then it is recommended that a review mechanism is required to be 
included in a Section 106 Agreement. This will ensure that the viability of the scheme can be 
reassessed at various points during its development to see if it is able to provide affordable 
housing, either on-site or via a financial contribution. 
 
It is important that committee is aware that much of the difference of opinion in respect of 
sales values relates to benchmarking against prices from very recently released 
developments in the vicinity of St. Catherine’s Place. These developments show a significant 
uplift in values from those previously achieved in the local area. Discussions remain ongoing 
between Avison Young and Lambert Smith Hampton in respect of this matter, and the 
outcome of these discussions may result in changes to the affordable housing position. 
 
Any updated position will be set out in the Amendment Sheet, and a verbal update will also 
be provided to committee. 
 
It is also important for committee to be aware that the applicant is in discussion with the 
Council’s Housing Team regarding the provision of affordable housing using grant funding. 
This means that the developer would be providing affordable housing, but at no cost to the 
development, as the use of grant funding would mean that the housing association would be 
paying nearly full open market values for the affordable properties. This affordable housing 
would be provided outside of the planning system, would not be secured through any s.106 
agreement and as such, it is not a material consideration in the determination of this 
planning application. The Council’s planning policies are clear that affordable housing 
provided through the planning system should be provided by the developer with no grant 
being applied. 
 
The recommendation in respect of Affordable Housing provision is that the application be 
refused as the proposed development fails to make an appropriate contribution towards the 
provision of affordable housing and is therefore contrary to Core Strategy Policy BCS17. 
 
C. WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT BE OF A SUFFICIENTLY HIGH-QUALITY 
DESIGN AND SUPPORT THE AIMS OF THE BEDMINSTER GREEN FRAMEWORK?  
 
Policy BCS21 advocates that new development should deliver high quality urban design that 
contributes positively to an area's character and identity, whilst safeguarding the amenity of 
existing development. Policies DM26-29 (inclusive) of the Site Allocations & Development 
Management Policies require development to contribute to the character of an area through 
its layout, form, public realm and building design. 
 
The Urban Living SPD requires all major developments to respond positively to its context. 
This should identify the prevailing height, scale and mass of surrounding buildings, streets 

Page 51



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

and spaces. It further outlines that for tall buildings proposed in sensitive locations particular 
consideration should be given.  
 
The Bedminster Green Framework sets out the requirement for new development within the 
framework area to provide distinctive, high quality architecture and public realm to create a 
strong sense of place, vitality and identity for the area. This is in recognition of the current 
lack of identity in Bedminster Green and the opportunity available through appropriate 
development to create a new urban quarter which is also legible, active and enjoyable at 
street level.  
 
The City Design Group have objected to the proposed development on design grounds. The 
CDG states that the Bedminster Green Framework embeds a presumption for high density 
development and taller buildings at this site, whilst also setting out a number of key 
principles required to achieve it, including exemplary design quality and an urban design 
response relating to the Urban Living SPD. The CDG raise concerns in particular relating to 
public realm, outdoor amenity and play, internal configuration and the overall height, scale 
and massing. These are considered below in turn. 
 
i) Public realm 
 
Policy DM28 sets out how development should create high quality public realm which is 
appropriate in terms of space for movement and the relationship with the building edge. 
Policy DM27 sets out how development should provide streets and spaces that allow 
convenient access and choice of movement modes, at a scale appropriate to the size of 
development. The Urban Living SPD provides further guidance, acknowledging that as 
densities increase, the need to invest in a high quality public realm grows. This need for high 
quality public realm is reiterated in the Bedminster Green Framework, and the application 
site in particular is noted as a key location in the Framework area which would contribute to 
distinctive character in the area. 
 
The CDG identifies that all four frontages on the edges of the proposed development fail to 
meet the requirements set out in policy to deliver a sufficiently high quality public realm, 
particularly given the scale of the development proposed. For example, the set-back of the 
development along Malago Road (fronting onto Bedminster Green) is insufficient to create 
the vision of the Bedminster Green Framework for an ‘Avenue of Trees’ and which would 
create a functional, comfortable pedestrian environment along what would be a main 
transport corridor on the A38. This is particularly evident at Block A whereby the footpath 
width to the front of this 16-storey building is only 1.9 metres in width at its narrowest point, 
increasing to 3.6 metres at its widest point. 
 
Concerns are also raised over the quantum of public realm at the base of Block B along 
Dalby Avenue and the ‘pocket space’, the amenity of which is questionable given its location 
between two tall elements of the scheme. While improvement to the public realm within the 
square of St Catherine’s Place is noted, it is considered that opportunities to improve the 
public realm at Mill Lane have also not been sufficiently explored. 
 
In summary, the maximised footprint of the development is considered to have inhibited the 
design quality and the quantum of the public realm at the site frontages, which fail to meet 
the requirements and policy aspirations set out in DM27, DM28, the Urban Living SPD and 
the Bedminster Green Framework. 
 
ii) Outdoor space and children’s play 
 

Page 52



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Policy DM27 sets out the requirement for “the provision of adequate appropriate and usable 
private or communal amenity space”. The Urban Living SPD provides further guidance on 
this and recommends 1282sqm of private open space for the scheme as currently proposed. 
Approximately 1329sqm is proposed to be provided as a mix of private and communal open 
space. 
 
While it is noted that the quantity of amenity space is met in accordance with the Urban 
Living SPD, the function and quality of this space is also an important consideration. The 
location of communal roof terraces on the 9th and 11th floor of Block A, without any indication 
of wind protection, would result in an unpleasant environment. Further communal space at 
the mezzanine of Block A is considered likely to be overshadowed by surrounding tall 
buildings and subject to wind tunnel effects. Balconies on the residential units are also 
considered likely to be affected by air and noise pollution from Malago Road. The quality and 
utility of this outdoor amenity space is therefore considered insufficient. 
 
The Urban Living SPD sets out how children’s play is expected to be integrated into 
residential development schemes, enabling and facilitating opportunities for play and 
informal recreation. According to the Child Yield Calculator, as least 27 children would live 
across the scheme, yet there are limited opportunities for play within it. Particular concern is 
raised over the lack of private or communal amenity space for residents of Blocks C, D and 
E, which is not compensated for by sufficient access to high quality public realm across the 
rest of the site.  
 
In summary, it is considered that the design does not demonstrate how children and 
children’s play has been accommodated as per the requirements of the Urban Living SPD, 
providing a suitably high-quality environment for residents of all ages. 
 
iii) Internal configuration 
 
Policy BCS21 of the Core Strategy seeks to ensure new development is of a quality design, 
including safeguarding the amenity of existing development and create a high quality 
environment for future occupiers. 
 
It is considered that the utilisation of standard floor plate arrangements in the development 
design fails to provide an appropriate response to the site context and create a high-quality 
living environment. For example, the layout of Block A creates a high proportion of single 
aspect units with potential for obstructed light and outlook, particularly at lower levels. This is 
not in accordance with the high-quality design requirements of Policy BCS21, nor the 
expectations set out for higher density development in the Urban Living SPD and the 
Bedminster Green Framework. 
 
iv) Height, scale and massing 
 
Policies DM26 and DM27 set out the policy expectations for development to respond 
positively to local character and create healthy, safe and sustainable places through an 
appropriate response to the immediate context, site constraints and the character of 
adjoining street and spaces. The Urban Living SPD provides further guidance, particularly in 
areas undergoing significant change with an emerging context and the need to provide an 
appropriate transition to existing context and communities. The Bedminster Green 
Framework sets out principles for taller buildings, stating that well-designed tall elements can 
provide identity, character and landmark buildings. However, it emphasises the importance 
of composition of taller buildings, to ‘step down’ and transition toward lower adjoining areas. 
 

Page 53



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

Whilst recognising that the extant permission establishes the principle of a taller building on 
this site (at 16 storeys), the retention and conversion of St. Catherine’s House provides a 
different context to that in which the previous scheme was consented. It is a constraint to the 
development and the location of a new 16 storey block (Block A) ca. 17m from the 8-storey 
St Catherine’s House is considered likely to severely compromise the living environment of 
its occupants and affect the quality of the outdoor amenity space.  
 
Furthermore, it does not provide a sufficient transition that acknowledges the contextual 
height of the converted St Catherine’s House and existing development on Stafford Street. 
 
The transition between the proposed development and its surroundings is considered of 
insufficient quality at other locations; namely between Block C and St Catherine’s House, 
between Stafford Street and Mill Lane and between Block E and East Street (particularly 
notable as the edge of the Conservation Area). By virtue of the height and massing of the 
development, across the scheme, it is considered that it fails to appropriately respond to, 
and transition with, the surrounding lower height development, appearing overbearing in 
some locations and with potential harmful effects on existing and future occupiers in some 
cases (see Key Issue D for more detailed consideration on residential amenity).  
 
Consequently, the development is not considered to meet the requirements of DM26, DM27, 
the Urban Living SPD or the Bedminster Green Framework. 
 
v) Conservation Area 
 
Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires 
local planning authorities to have special regard to the desirability of preserving or enhancing 
the character or appearance of the conservation area. The case of R (Forge Field Society) v 
Sevenoaks DC [2014] EWHC 1895 (Admin) ("Forge Field") has made it clear where there is 
harm to a listed building or a conservation area the decision maker ''must give that harm 
considerable importance and weight." [48]. 
 
Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that in 
determining planning applications, local planning authorities should take account of the 
desirability of sustaining and enhancing heritage assets, and the desirability of new 
development to make a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness. It also 
states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a 
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation, with 
any harm or loss requiring clear and convincing justification.  
 
Policy BCS22 states that development proposals will safeguard or enhance heritage assets 
and their character and setting. This includes conservation areas and historic buildings, 
including those locally listed. 
 
Policy DM31 sets out that where a proposed development would impact the significance of a 
heritage asset (including those locally listed) the applicant will be required to justify the 
extent of proposed works and demonstrate how the features of the heritage asset and the 
local character of the area will be retained. 
 
The northern part of the application site is located within the boundary of the designated 
Bedminster Conservation Area.  
 
Historic England have raised no objection to the proposed development on heritage 
grounds. However, as detailed above, the CDG have raised concern over the impact of the 

Page 54



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

height and scale of the buildings on the character area of East Street within the 
Conservation Area, where a 5-storey element at Block E exceeds the prevailing height of 2-3 
storeys characterising the area, appearing incongruous. Whilst there may be some scope for 
increasing height at this location applying the principles of intensification (to 4 storeys), it is 
considered that there is not sufficient justification for such an increase in this case and the 
overall massing is out of character with the Conservation area.  
 
vi) Trees 
 
Policy DM17 of the Site Allocations and Development Management (2014) sets out that all 
new development should integrate important existing trees; that development resulting in the 
loss of ancient woodland, aged or veteran trees will not be permitted; and, that where tree 
loss or damage is essential for appropriate development, replacement trees should be 
provided of an appropriate species and in accordance with the tree replacement standard. 
Policy DM15 requires that provision of additional trees or improved management of existing 
trees is an expectation of the landscape treatment of new development. Policy BCS9 
requires that an appropriate type and amount of new or enhanced green infrastructure in 
new development. 
 
The applicant proposes to remove 7 trees as part of the development. As per the Bristol 
Tree Replacement Standard, the removal of these trees would require 30 replacement trees 
or a pro-rata financial contribution of 30 X 765.21 = £22,956.30 to mitigate their loss. The 
applicant has currently proposed to provide 4 trees and 5 shrubs as mitigation, which is 
considered insufficient, particularly given that 3 of the trees to be lost have been identified by 
the BCC Tree Officer as providing a contribution to the visual amenity of the Bedminster 
Conservation Area.  
 
These three trees are Category A and B trees along Dalby Avenue and provide one of the 
only significant sections of mature green infrastructure locally, contributing to the character 
and appearance to the area. Furthermore, the Tree Officer considers that there is insufficient 
evidence in the application to support the removal of these trees over their retention. 
 
The proposed development is considered to fail to meet the requirements for trees and 
green infrastructure in new development as per policies DM17, DM15 and BCS9, and does 
not sufficiently mitigate the loss of trees as per the Bristol Tree Replacement Standard, 
resulting in adverse impacts to the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 
Summary 
 
The application site is considered suited to a higher density development than its existing 
use, given its sustainable location and position within the Bedminster Green regeneration 
area. The principle for taller buildings on the site has also been established by the extant 
permission.  
 
However, it is considered that the proposals of the current application have sought to 
‘maximise’ rather than ‘optimise’ density and as a result, do not achieve the goals of 
successful placemaking, high quality design and liveability which are set out in the Local 
Plan Policies BCS21, DM26, DM27, DM28 and DM29, the Urban Living SPD and 
Bedminster Green Framework. 
 
The proposed development, by nature of its height, scale and massing would be 
incongruous in relation to the character of the Conservation Area and would fail to safeguard 
or enhance the Conservation Area. This would be contrary to Policies BCS22 and DM31.  

Page 55



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

 
The proposed development would fail to sufficiently mitigate the loss of trees as required by 
Policies DM17 and result in an adverse impact on the character of the area.  
 
D. WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT CAUSE ANY UNACCEPTABLE HARM TO 
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY? 
 
Policy BCS21 outlines that development in Bristol is expected to safeguard the amenity of 
existing development and create a high-quality environment for future occupiers. Policy 
DM29 sets out that new buildings will be designed to ensure that the existing and proposed 
development achieves appropriate levels of privacy, outlook and daylight. 
 
BRE Report 209, “Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight – A Guide to Good 
Practice” outlines the approach for three tests to assess whether adequate levels of daylight 
can be achieved as a result of a development proposal, based upon Vertical Sky Component 
(VSC), Average Daylight Factor (ADF) and No Sky Line (NSL).  
 
VSC is a measure of the amount of diffuse daylight reaching a window. In respect of VSC, 
the BRE guide explains that diffuse daylight may be adversely affected if, after a 
development, the VSC is both less than 27% and less than 0.8 times its former value. 
 
ADF is a measure of the amount of daylight in the affected room. The BRE guide 
recommends an ADF of 5% or more if there is no supplementary electric lighting, or 2% or 
more if supplementary electric lighting is provided. There are additional minimum 
recommendations for dwellings of 2% for kitchens, 1.5% for living rooms and 1% for 
bedrooms. 
 
The BRE guide explains that the daylight distribution, assessed by plotting the position of the 
existing and proposed ‘No Sky Line’ (the point within the affected room where the sky can no 
longer be viewed) of a neighbouring property may be adversely affected if, after the 
development, the area of the working plane which receives direct skylight is reduced to less 
than 0.8 times its former value. 
 
In respect of sunlight, an assessment should take account of the Annual Probable Sunlight 
Hours (APSH). APSH is amount of sunlight the affected window can receive with and without 
the new development. The BRE guide explains that sunlight availability may be adversely 
affected if the centre of the window: receives less than 0.8 times its former sunlight hours 
during either period (summer or winter). 
 
A Daylight and Sunlight Assessment has been undertaken by Avison Young (October 2019). 
The results of which, set out within Appendix III of that Report are relied upon within this 
section of the Committee Report.  
 
i) Daylight for neighbours 
 
The results of the VSC, ADF and NSL assessments are included within Pages 71-81 of the 
Avison Young Report. A total of 345 windows were considered in the adjoining area, 
including approximately 139 windows at St. Catherine’s House.  
 
When applying the BRE Guidance to the results, a total of 189 of the 345 windows assessed 
pass the test whereby VSC is either greater than 27% or the reduction in daylight is less 
than 20% of existing. This demonstrates that 156 of the windows within the assessment 

Page 56



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

would be adversely affected. When solely considering the results for St. Catherine’s House, 
a total 88 out of 139 of windows were considered to be adversely affected.  
 
It is noted within the Avison Young Report that the BRE Guidance is ‘advisory’, and whilst 
frequently relied upon by Bristol City Council, it is the conclusion of Officers that a degree of 
flexibility should be applied when considered the impacts of development on daylight. As 
such, the results of the assessment were also tested against a less stringent approach, 
whereby a ‘significant adverse effect’ would result from those windows which suffered a 
reduction in daylight (VSC) of more than 40%.  
 
Under this test, a total 103 of the 345 windows within the study area and 77 of 139 of the 
windows at St. Catherine’s House were considered to be significantly adversely affected. 
 
The Avison Young Report references the assessment approach undertaken at Malago Road 
(19/00267/F), however it should be noted in the context of that application much fewer 
properties were affected and the rooms affected were either kitchens or bedrooms for which 
the BRE guidelines acknowledge daylight for these rooms is less important. The Report sets 
out that acceptable VSC values were 11-14% at ground floor, 16-17% at first floor and 18-
20% at second floor.  
 
When applying the thresholds above, assuming that 18-20% VSC is acceptable at second 
floor and above, a total of 79 windows of the 345 windows within the assessment would still 
fail the tests. 
 
The results for ADF and NSL were also reviewed and assessed. When applying the 
minimum ADF of 1%, which is usually considered only acceptable for bedrooms, a total of 50 
rooms in the study area failed to achieve this minimum standard. 
 
The NSL assessment indicates that 83 rooms would fail to meet BRE Guidance and result in 
a reduction of the area of the working plane which receives direct skylight of less than 0.8 
times its former value. 
 
It is considered that the proposed development would result in unacceptable overshadowing 
to existing dwellings by obscuring daylight to a high proportion of windows when applying 
both the BRE Guidance and principles previously applied to other developments within 
Bristol.  
 
ii) Sunlight for neighbours 
 
The results of the APSH assessment are included on pages 82-87 of the Avison Young 
Report. The APSH assessment demonstrates that a total 129 rooms windows assessed 
would fail to meet BRE Guidance in either summer, winter or both.  
 
In the interests of applying flexibility to the approach and the guidance, the threshold was 
increased to 100% of room area. This threshold means that as a result of the development 
affected rooms would be completely void of sunlight, where there previously had been at 
least some sunlight in either summer or winter.  
 
A total of 56 rooms would have 100% of the floor area void of sunlight in either winter, 
summer or both. 54 of the rooms in St. Catherine’s House would not receive any sunlight as 
a result of the proposal, with all of these rooms currently achieving APSH coverage of 
between 20% and 40% (without the proposed development).  
 

Page 57



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

It is considered that the proposed development would result in unacceptable harm to 
residential amenity by blocking sunlight to a high proportion of habitable rooms of 
neighbouring properties.  
 
iii) Overlooking 
 
Although specifically produced to guide householder alterations and extensions, 
Supplementary Planning Document 2 includes useful guidance on overlooking for new 
development. It states that where habitable rooms face each other, as a ’rule of thumb’, a 
gap of 21 metres should generally be provided. 
 
‘Site Plan Proposed Rev P03’ demonstrates that Block A would be located between 13 and 
17 metres from the existing St. Catherine’s House. Whilst less than ideal, a distance of ca. 
17 metres could be considered acceptable given the urban nature of the surrounding area. 
 
The proposed distance between flats in the southernmost part of St. Catherine’s House and 
Block A would be unacceptable and likely result in overlooking between existing neighbours 
and future occupiers.  
 
iv) Amenity for future occupiers 
 
The Urban Living Assessment indicates that each of the proposed dwellings would meet the 
nationally described space standards in terms of total floorspace, bedroom sizes and built-in 
storage.  
 
The results of VSC, ADF, NSL and APSH assessments for the proposed development are 
included on pages 88 to 101 of the Avison Young Report.  
 
Within Block A, 136 windows were assessed as failing to meet the BRE Guidance of 
providing 27% VSC, and a total of 24 windows would not achieve a ADF of 2% or 1% 
dependent on use. This would mean approximately half of the 264 windows proposed within 
Block A would fail to meet the guidance.  
 
21 windows out of a total of 37 windows within Block B were assessed as failing to meet 
BRE Guidance in terms of VSC but most of the windows would achieve an acceptable ADF. 
 
With the exception of Floor 1, Block C and Block E would be largely compliant with the BRE 
Guidance.   
 
Block D would be less than ideal in terms of daylight, with 6 of the 9 windows assessed to 
fail to meet the BRE Guidance on VSC. 3 of these windows would also fail the BRE 
Guidance on ADF.  
 
Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would fail to create a high-quality 
living environment for future occupiers as required by Policy BCS21.  
 
Summary 
 
The proposed development would result in an unacceptable impact upon residential amenity 
in terms of overshadowing and overlooking, contrary to Policies BCS21 and DM29. 
 
 

Page 58



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

E. IS THE IMPACT OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT UPON TRANSPORT AND 
HIGHWAYS ACCEPTABLE? 
 
The application site is bounded by the A38 Dalby Avenue to the east and south and East 
Street to the north. To the west, Stafford Street and Mill Lane run adjacent to the site.  The 
proposed scheme would provide 27no. car parking spaces including 3no. disabled car 
parking spaces. These spaces would be split between a car park underneath Block A and 
adjacent to Block C.  
 
In total, 347no. cycle spaces would be provided on the site, including provision for visitors to 
the residential accommodation. One service yard would be situated behind Block C, 
accessed off the A38 Dalby Avenue and another service yard would be situated off Mill Lane 
adjacent to Block A and is intended to serve all of the commercial units. 
 
i) Strategic road network  
 
Policy BCS10 of the Core Strategy (2011) states that:  
 
“Land required for the implementation of transport proposals will be safeguarded to enable 
their future provision. Corridors with the potential to serve as future routes for walking, 
cycling and public transport will also be safeguarded. Appropriate existing transport facilities 
such as transport depots will be safeguarded where required.” 
 
The explanatory text for Policy BCS11 of the Core Strategy states:  
 
“Without appropriate measures to mitigate impact and investment to enable the provision of 
infrastructure improvements, the proposed level of development will be neither sustainable 
nor acceptable.” 
 
Policy DM27 of the Site Allocations and Development Management (2014) states that: 
 
““Proposals should not prejudice the existing and future development potential of adjoining 
sites or the potential for the area to achieve a coherent, interconnected and integrated built 
form. Where such potential may reasonably exist, including on sites with different use or 
ownership, development will be expected to either progress with a comprehensive scheme 
or, by means of its layout and form, enable a co-ordinated approach to be adopted towards 
the development of those sites in the future”. 
 
The application site is within the Bedminster Green regeneration area in which five individual 
plots are expected to deliver significant mixed-use development. In order to avoid piecemeal 
development and to ensure new residents benefit from high quality public transport, walking 
and cycling provision connectivity, a development framework approach has been advocated 
by Bristol City Council.  
 
As part of this, a Strategic Transport Assessment (STA) is being carried out by Peter Brett 
Associates (PBA) to consider a number of infrastructure improvements including an A38 
Public Transport Corridor (additional bus lanes), an upgraded rail facility at Bedminster 
Station and Public Realm design and adjustments to a number of surrounding streets, to 
create a more attractive environment and enhanced cycle linkage. 
 
The Transport Development Management (TDM) team have noted that they consider this 
scheme has been brought to committee prematurely and therefore cannot recommend 

Page 59



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

approval in the absence of the completed Strategic Transport Assessment (STA) for the 
entirety of Bedminster Green.  
 
The critical matters for this site relates to the A38, the location of the northbound bus stop 
and the completion of a general arrangement plan. Until these matters are resolved and in 
the absence of the completed STA, TDM is not in a position to offer a positive 
recommendation for this proposal.  
 
ii) Provision of car and cycle parking 
 
Policy DM23 of the Site Allocations and Developmnt Management Policies document (2014) 
sets out the requirement for developments in relation to transport, including the parking and 
cycle parking provision expected to be provided.  
 
A total of 22 residential car parking spaces are proposed within the mezzanine level car park 
within Block A, for sole use as allocated parking by the residential dwellings. No resident 
parking scheme permits will be available to occupants of the proposed development and a 
standard advice would apply in this respect, informing the RPS team not to issue these. In 
the event that all other matters are resolved, TDM would seek a condition that obligates the 
current or any future owner to inform prospective tenants or buyers of this as a matter of 
course.  
 
The updated Transport Statement states 3 disabled bays have been provided however it is 
unclear where these have been provided as the rear and side hatched markings have not 
been demonstrated. When applying BCC minimum standards, a total of 12 disabled spaces 
are required. Furthermore, TDM are unable to assess the suitability of the parking adjacent 
to Mill Lane given the lack of information submitted regarding servicing / confirmation of the 
size of the maximum delivery vehicle. 
 
TDM therefore cannot support the development on the basis of failing to provide sufficient 
disabled parking. 
 
In relation to cycle parking, TDM consider that the submitted plans do not demonstrate 
sufficient cycle parking. The design of the cycle store is unclear, and it has not been 
demonstrated this store would be able to accommodate sufficient cycle parking numbers.  
 
As per BCC minimum standards 334 cycle parking spaces would be required for the 
residents of the development with a further 20 provided for visitors. In terms of commercial 
uses four spaces will be required, two for staff and two for visitors. 
 
Cycle parking will need to be located at various locations around the site to enable adequate 
access and parking for both visitors and residents. Sheffield Stand cycle parking is required 
on site. 
 
TDM is unable to recommend approval on the basis of the level of cycle parking shown. 
 
iii) Recycling and waste provision 
 
Policy DM32 of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies document 
(2014) sets out the expectations for development with regards to refuse and recycling 
storage and collection.  
 

Page 60



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

The servicing arrangements to the rear of the site are critical for the design and development 
of the surrounding streets, including Stafford Street, Little Paradise and Leicester Street. 
However, there is limited detail provided in the revised Transport Statement. A swept path 
analysis is provided for an 11.4m refuse vehicle for the emerging scheme (by the 
neighbouring developer) TDM is yet to receive surety (and a written confirmation) that the St 
Catherine’s Place retail units will not require a larger vehicle.  
 
TDM therefore cannot support the development on the basis of failing to provide sufficient 
details of servicing requirements and as a consequence failure to inform the local 
infrastructure required between the St Catherine’s Place and Little Paradise schemes. 
 
iv) Travel Plan 
 
The submitted Travel Plan is deemed to be insufficient by TDM. Interim targets are required 
and it is also essential to agree a travel plan budget prior to determination. The action plan 
needs to be updated to include sustainable travel vouchers such as bus/bike/car club.  
 
v) Summary 
 
On the basis of the information provided to date, TDM is unable to recommend approval of 
the application which should be refused on the following grounds: 
 
1) Compliance / fit with the A38 corridor works has not been demonstrated 
2) Failure to agree a package of s106 contributions 
3) Insufficient disabled car parking provision and cycle parking provision 
4) Failure to confirm / demonstrate servicing requirements 
5) Submitted Travel Plan unacceptable 
 
As noted in TDM detailed comments, matters 1 – 2 listed above will remain outstanding in 
the absence of the completed Strategic Transport Assessment for the entirety of Bedminster 
Green. However, it is considered that in advance of the Committee meeting the applicant will 
respond to / clarify matters 3 – 5 listed above. An update to Members will be provided by 
way of the Amendment Sheet. 
 
F. WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT BE ACCEPTABLE WITH REGARDS TO 
CONTAMINATION, FLOOD RISK, DRAINAGE AND AIR QUALITY?  
 
i) Contaminated land 
 
Policy DM34 sets out that new development should demonstrate that any existing 
contamination on a site would be addressed by appropriate mitigation measures and that 
there is no unacceptable risk of pollution within the site or surrounding area. The policy also 
requires that the development will not cause land to become contaminated. 
 
The applicant has submitted a desk study and ground investigation, and a flood risk 
assessment, and a foul and surface water drainage strategy. 
 
The Public Protection (Contaminated Land) officer has stated that they are broadly satisfied 
with the information provided thus far by the applicant in relation to human risk and has 
advised recommended conditions. However, the Officer notes that as the Environment 
Agency have objected to the application with respect to controlled waters, the application 
cannot be supported with respect to contamination as a whole, and the recommended 
conditions may not be satisfactory in overcoming the Environment Agency objection. 

Page 61



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

 
Comments from the EA in relation to the revised details is still awaited. No comment was 
provided in time for this report. An update to Members will be provided by way of the 
Amendment Sheet. 
 
ii) Flood risk and drainage  
 
Regarding flood risk, Policy BCS16 of the Core Strategy states that developments need to 
be resilient to flooding through design and layout and incorporate sensitively designed 
mitigation measures to ensure the proposed development remains safe from flooding over 
its lifetime. The requirement to incorporate Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) into new 
development is highlighted, as is the expectation that new development would incorporate 
water management measures to reduce surface water run-off and ensure flood risk is not 
increased elsewhere. 
 
The applicant submitted a flood risk assessment and a foul and surface water drainage 
strategy. An updated Flood Risk Technical Note was submitted in September 2019.  
 
The Flood Risk Officer objected to the application as originally submitted (October 2018) 
because the plans did not follow the framework flood risk assessment commissioned by the 
land owners, or the Bedminster Green Framework. The officer expressed concern that the 
scheme did not facilitate use of greener SuDS techniques, prioritised using the SuDS 
hierarchy, nor does it reduce the existing site run off significantly. 
 
On review of the Flood Risk Technical Note and Addendum, the Flood Risk Officer was 
satisfied that the FRA recommendations have been taken into account for the flood risk 
posed to the development, however there has been no update to the drainage strategy to 
address concerns about the lack of a preferred SuDS solution providing reduced run-off 
rates.  
 
Whilst the LLFA consider the issue of flood risk has been addressed, an agreed SuDS 
solution for the site that meets BCC’s requirements has not been resolved. It is considered 
that this aspect could be conditioned so that an acceptable SuDs strategy could be 
submitted prior to the commencement of development.  
 
Comments from the EA in relation to the revised details are awaited. An update to Members 
will be provided by way of the Amendment Sheet.  
 
iii) Air quality  
 
Policy DM23 states that development in designted Air Quality Management Areas should 
take account of existing air pollution and include measures to mitigate its impact on future 
occupiers where possible. 
 
The application site is located within a designated Air Quality Management Area. The 
applicant has submitted an Air Quality Assessment for the proposed development. The Air 
Quality Officer has recommended that provided mitigation measures listed in the AQA are 
secured via conditions attached to any consent, the development would be acceptable with 
regard to air quality impact. 
 
Summary 
 

Page 62



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

The proposed development fails to provide a sufficient sustainable drainage strategy to meet 
the requirements of Policy BCS16, however whilst not ideal this aspect could be secured by 
way of a condition. Comments on the revised scheme are awaited from the Environment 
Agency. An update to Members will be provided by way of the Amendment Sheet.  
 
 
G. DOES THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT GIVE SUFFICIENT CONSIDERATION OF 
SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION? 
 
Policy BCS13 sets out that development should contribute to both mitigating and adapting to 
climate change, and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. 
 
Policy BCS14 sets out that development in Bristol should include measures to reduce 
carbon dioxide emissions from energy use by minimising energy requirements, incorporating 
renewable energy sources and low-energy carbon sources. Development will be expected to 
provide sufficient renewable energy generation to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from 
residual energy use in the buildings by at least 20%. 
 
Policy BCS15 sets out that sustainable design and construction should be integral to new 
development in Bristol. Consideration of energy efficiency, recycling, flood adaption, material 
consumption and biodiversity should be included as part of a sustainability or energy 
statement. 
 
The Energy Strategy and Sustainability Report as originally submitted was considered to be 
insufficient by the Sustainable Cities team. A revised statement was provided setting out a 
strategy for heating and hot water utilising combined heat and power (CHP). The revised 
strategy for delivering heating and hot water utilising CHP now complies with BCS14 and 
this could allow a future connection to the heat network.  
 
The overheating assessment provided is noted. This shows failures i.e. overheating, in 
bedrooms and a living room. The Energy Statement and design specification should be 
revised to show how this risk will be addressed in order to ensure that all rooms are resilient 
to overheating during the lifetime of the scheme. 
 
According to the Energy Statement the Heating and Hot Water strategy in the residential 
units is still being developed. Whilst the heating/cooling details have not been provided, 
given the scheme now incorporates a system in accordance with the heat hierarchy, that 
these heating/cooling details could be secured by way of a condition.  
 
At the time of publishing this report, a BREEAM pre-assessment for the non-residential 
elements of the scheme is still outstanding (commercial units in Block A and Block B). Whilst 
the pre-assessment has not been provided, Officers consider that this could be secured by 
way of a condition. 
 
Given the issues flagged above, the proposed development subject to conditions could give 
sufficient comfort that it would mitigate and adapt to climate change and minimising energy 
requirements.  
 
OBLIGATIONS 
 
The applicant has proposed the following Heads of Terms for a Section 106 Agreement (if 
planning permission were to be granted): 

 Transfer of Land for Strategic Highways Improvements 

Page 63



Item no. 1 
Development Control Committee A – 20 November 2019 
Application No. 18/05310/F: St Catherine’s Place Shopping Centre East Street 
Bedminster Bristol BS3 4HG 
 

 

 Delivery of the Residential Travel Plan (not quantified nor specified whether this 
would be undertaken by BCC on behalf of the applicant) 

 Contribution to the Windmill Hill Residents Parking Scheme (not quantified) 
 
The items identified by the applicant are related to the development in terms of scale and 
kind, however, more work would be required to quantify and agree the scope of any draft 
Heads of Terms. Aside from there being no agreement on the level of Affordable Housing to 
be provided subject to s.106 Agreement, TDM would require contributions to the Travel Plan, 
Car Club and any other contributions resulting from the findings of the Strategic Transport 
Assessment to be quantified and agreed.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
In terms of adopted policy, whilst the principle of development is supported, it is considered 

that:  

 the proposed development fails to make an appropriate contribution towards the 
provision of affordable housing;  

 the scheme is not acceptable in design terms and would result in unacceptable 
impact on the amenity of existing residents; and 

 compliance with the A38 corridor works has not been demonstrated and a package 
of s106 contributions has not been quantified or agreed.  

 
This application has been considered and assessed by Officers against the Development 
Plan, taking into account material considerations. For these reasons the application is 
recommended to Members for refusal.  
 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY  
 
This development is liable for CIL totalling £1,418,821.88.  
 
RECOMMENDED  REFUSE 
 
The following reason(s) for refusal are associated with this decision: 
 
Reason(s) 
 
1. The proposed development fails to make an appropriate contribution towards the 
provision of affordable housing and is therefore contrary to Core Strategy Policy BCS17. 
 
2. The proposed development by reason of its height, scale, massing and overall design 
quality would be unacceptable in design terms and impact on existing residential amenity. 
This would be contrary to Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (February 
2019); Policy BCS21 of the Bristol Core Strategy (June 2011); Policies DM26, DM27, DM28 
and DM29 of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (July 2014); Urban 
Living SPD (November 2018); and Bedminster Green Framework (March 2019). 
 
3. The proposed development would be unacceptable in terms of transport and highways as 
compliance with the A38 corridor works has not been demonstrated and there is an absence 
of an agreed package of s106 contributions contrary to Policies BCS10 and BCS11 of the 
Bristol Core Strategy (June 2011); and Policy DM27 of the Site Allocations and Development 
Management Policies (July 2014). 
 

Page 64



Supporting Documents 
 

 
1. St Catherines Place Shopping Centre, East Street, Bedminster 

 
1. Key Plan 
2. Upper Ground Floor Plan 
3. Typical Upper Floor Plan 
4. East Street Section 
5. East Street (North) Elevation 
6. Dalby Avenue (West) Elevation 
7. Dalby Avenue (South) Elevation 

 
 

Page 65



LRP01

LR1:250 BT

P042001P06

BT

MAISONETTES

MAISONETTES

MAISONETTES

ST CATHERINE'S PLACE

D
A

L
B

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

DALBY AVENUE

17.07.2018 FIRST ISSUE

JULY 2018

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK E

BOUNDARY LINE

LR24.07.2018 BTP02 GENERAL UPDATES

KEY PLAN

LR06.08.2018 BTP03 BLOCKS A&B UPDATED

LR21.09.2018 BTP04 PLANNING ISSUE

LR26.06.2019 BTP05 UPDATED

LR13.09.2019 BTP06 PLANNING ISSUE

Job Title

Drawing Title

Client

Date Drawn

CommentsByDate

Drawing Record

Checked

Scale @ A1

E-mail

020 7255 1150

admin@leslie-jones.co.uk

PLANNING ISSUE

Rev

Telephone

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING

Consultants

Key Plan

Checked

Job No. Drawing No. Revision

A ( )

N

ONLY)
(UNUSUAL AND DIFFICULT TO MANAGE 
SIGNIFICANT HEALTH AND SAFETY RISKS

3646

Suite 302 Grand Union Studios

322 Ladbroke Grove, London.

W105AD

does not contain any.
effort to ensure that it is scanned for viruses, we cannot guarantee that it
responsibility and attributed to yourselves. Whilst Leslie Jones make every
produced by yourselves which contains part or all of this data remains your
made to the hard copy which is superior to the digital format. Any document
of the content of these files is at your own risk. Reference should always be
this data will occur. These files are current as of the date of issue. Your use
Magnetic media does not constitute contract documentation and updates of

be reported to the architect before the affected work commences.
specialists drawings / documents and any discrepancies or variations are to
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant consultants and / or

dimensions only are to be taken from thisdrawing.
variations are to be reported to the architect before work commences. Figured
site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site. Any discrepancies or
Dimensions, area and levels where given are only approximate and subject to

This scheme is subject to town planning and all other necessary consents.

detailed on this drawing, note the following:
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.
It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor

FIRMSTONE CONSORTIA ONE

.

BEDMINSTER
ST. CATHERINE'S PLACE 

0

METRES

1 2 3 4 5 10 15

C-C'

2104
AP(06)

C-C'

2104
AP(06)

East

2202
AP(06)

East

2202
AP(06)

F-F'

2102
AP(06)

F-F'

2102
AP(06)

E-E'

2101
AP(06)

E-E'

2101
AP(06)

B-B'

2103
AP(06)

B-B'

2103
AP(06)

West

2203
AP(06)

West

2203
AP(06)

D
-D
'

2
1
0
5

A
P
(0

6
)

D
-D
'

2
1
0
5

A
P
(0

6
) S

o
u
th

2
2
0
0

A
P
(0

6
)

S
o
u
th

2
2
0
0

A
P
(0

6
)

A
-A
'

2
1
0
0

A
P
(0

6
)

A
-A
'

2
1
0
0

A
P
(0

6
)

E
a
st S

t

2
2
0
4

A
P
(0

6
)

E
a
st S

t

2
2
0
4

A
P
(0

6
)

N
o
rth

2
2
0
1

A
P
(0

6
)

N
o
rth

2
2
0
1

A
P
(0

6
)

Lane

Bus

La
neB
us

S
to
pB
us

Sto
p

Bus

E
A

S
T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

MILL LANE

STAFFORD STREET

P
age 66



FIRST ISSUELRP01

LR1:250 JAN 2018 RR

P042003P12

RR29/01/2018

MAISONETTES

LR RR12/02/2018P02 CAR PARK UPDATE

BT21.06.2018P03 LR UPDATED SCHEME

ST CATHERINE'S PLACE

70sqm
2B4P

70sqm
2B4P
70sqm
2B4P

70sqm
2B4P

70sqm
2B4P

70sqm
2B4P

70sqm
2B4P

D
A

L
B

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

DALBY AVENUE

BT12.07.2018P04 LR UPDATED SCHEME

UPDATED SCHEMELR17.07.2018P05 BT

UPDATED SCHEMELR24.07.2018P06 BT

LR01.08.2018P07 BTAFTER PRE-APP COMMENTS

C.M1 C.M2
C.M5

C.M6

B.M1

C.M3
C.M4

B.M2

B.M3

B.M4

LR06.08.2018P08 BTBLOCKS A&B UPDATED

LR28.08.2018P09 BTCINEMA UPDATED

LR21.09.2018 BTP10 PLANNING ISSUE

LR21.06.2019 BTP11 A38 REALIGMENT WITH BUS LANE

UPPER GROUND FLOOR
PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL SCHEME

LR13.09.2019 BTP12 PLANNING ISSUE

Job Title

Drawing Title

Client

Date Drawn

CommentsByDate

Drawing Record

Checked

Scale @ A1

E-mail

020 7255 1150

admin@leslie-jones.co.uk

PLANNING ISSUE

Rev

Telephone

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING

Consultants

Key Plan

Checked

Job No. Drawing No. Revision

A ( )

N

ONLY)
(UNUSUAL AND DIFFICULT TO MANAGE 
SIGNIFICANT HEALTH AND SAFETY RISKS

3646

Suite 302 Grand Union Studios

322 Ladbroke Grove, London.

W105AD

does not contain any.
effort to ensure that it is scanned for viruses, we cannot guarantee that it
responsibility and attributed to yourselves. Whilst Leslie Jones make every
produced by yourselves which contains part or all of this data remains your
made to the hard copy which is superior to the digital format. Any document
of the content of these files is at your own risk. Reference should always be
this data will occur. These files are current as of the date of issue. Your use
Magnetic media does not constitute contract documentation and updates of

be reported to the architect before the affected work commences.
specialists drawings / documents and any discrepancies or variations are to
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant consultants and / or

dimensions only are to be taken from thisdrawing.
variations are to be reported to the architect before work commences. Figured
site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site. Any discrepancies or
Dimensions, area and levels where given are only approximate and subject to

This scheme is subject to town planning and all other necessary consents.

detailed on this drawing, note the following:
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.
It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor

FIRMSTONE CONSORTIA ONE

.

BEDMINSTER
ST. CATHERINE'S PLACE 

0

METRES

1 2 3 4 5 10 15

Lane

Bus

La
neB
us

S
to
pB
us

Sto
p

Bus

E
A

S
T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

MILL LANE

STAFFORD STREET

RESIDENTIAL CAR PARK

13.40m AOD

12.75m AOD

13.91m AOD
SHARED PRIVATE AMENITY

13.62m AOD

13.40m AOD

50sqm
1B2P

50sqm
1B2P

50sqm
1B2P

50sqm
1B2P

13.66m AOD
PLANT

VENT LIFT

E
E

P
age 67



FIRST ISSUELRP01

LR1:250 BT

P042008P06

BT17.07.2018

MAISONETTES

MAISONETTES

MAISONETTES

ST CATHERINE'S PLACE

D
A

L
B

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

DALBY AVENUE

05 TO 08 FLOOR
PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL SCHEME

JULY 2018

UPDATED SCHEMEP02 24.07.2018 LR BT

LR06.08.2018P03 BTBLOCKS A&B UPDATED

70sqm
2B4P

A.5.5

70sqm
2B4P

A.5.4

70sqm
2B4P

A.5.3

70sqm
2B4P

A.5.2

70sqm
2B4P

A.5.1

70sqm
2B4P

50sqm
1B2P

A.5.12 A.5.11

85sqm
2B4P

A.5.10 50sqm
1B2P

A.5.6

50sqm
1B2P

A.5.7

70sqm
2B4P

A.5.870sqm
2B4P

A.5.9

27.700m AOD

B.5.1

B.5.2

B.5.3

50sqm
1B2P

61sqm
2B3P

50sqm
1B2P

20.650m AOD
20.650m AOD

18.700m AOD

LR21.09.2018 BTP04 PLANNING ISSUE

LR21.06.2019 BTP05 A38 REALIGMENT WITH BUS LANE

LR13.09.2019 BTP06 PLANNING ISSUE

28.4m AOD

VENT LIFT

E
E

0

METRES

1 2 3 4 5 10 15

Job Title

Drawing Title

Client

Date Drawn

CommentsByDate

Drawing Record

Checked

Scale @ A1

E-mail

020 7255 1150

admin@leslie-jones.co.uk

PLANNING ISSUE

Rev

Telephone

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING

Consultants

Key Plan

Checked

Job No. Drawing No. Revision

A ( )

N

ONLY)
(UNUSUAL AND DIFFICULT TO MANAGE 
SIGNIFICANT HEALTH AND SAFETY RISKS

3646

Suite 302 Grand Union Studios

322 Ladbroke Grove, London.

W105AD

does not contain any.
effort to ensure that it is scanned for viruses, we cannot guarantee that it
responsibility and attributed to yourselves. Whilst Leslie Jones make every
produced by yourselves which contains part or all of this data remains your
made to the hard copy which is superior to the digital format. Any document
of the content of these files is at your own risk. Reference should always be
this data will occur. These files are current as of the date of issue. Your use
Magnetic media does not constitute contract documentation and updates of

be reported to the architect before the affected work commences.
specialists drawings / documents and any discrepancies or variations are to
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant consultants and / or

dimensions only are to be taken from thisdrawing.
variations are to be reported to the architect before work commences. Figured
site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site. Any discrepancies or
Dimensions, area and levels where given are only approximate and subject to

This scheme is subject to town planning and all other necessary consents.

detailed on this drawing, note the following:
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.
It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor

FIRMSTONE CONSORTIA ONE

.

BEDMINSTER
ST. CATHERINE'S PLACE 

Lane

Bus

La
neB
us

S
to
pB
us

Sto
p

Bus

E
A

S
T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

MILL LANE

STAFFORD STREET

P
age 68



P01

LR

P062105P05

KEY PLAN

JULY 20181:200

BTLR FIRST ISSUE

BT

11.07.2018

SECTION D,D (EAST STREET)

FLAT FLAT FLAT

JGP02 BT06.08.2018 BLOCKS A&B UPDATED

TOP 
GREENERY ON 
SLATS AND 
WITH TIMBER 
BALUSTRADE 
NEW BLOCK EBLOCK D

MALL
ST CATHERINE'S 

UNIT
COMMERCIAL 
EXISTING 

UNIT
COMMERCIAL 
EXISTING 

LR21.09.2018P03 BTPLANNING ISSUE

LR26.06.2019P04 BTUPDATED

LRP05 BT13.09.2019 PLANNING ISSUE

Job Title

Drawing Title

Client

Date Drawn

CommentsByDate

Drawing Record

Checked

Scale @ A1

E-mail

020 7255 1150

admin@leslie-jones.co.uk

PLANNING ISSUE

Rev

Telephone

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING

Consultants

Key Plan

Checked

Job No. Drawing No. Revision

A ( )

N

ONLY)
(UNUSUAL AND DIFFICULT TO MANAGE 
SIGNIFICANT HEALTH AND SAFETY RISKS

3646

Suite 302 Grand Union Studios

322 Ladbroke Grove, London.

W105AD

does not contain any.
effort to ensure that it is scanned for viruses, we cannot guarantee that it
responsibility and attributed to yourselves. Whilst Leslie Jones make every
produced by yourselves which contains part or all of this data remains your
made to the hard copy which is superior to the digital format. Any document
of the content of these files is at your own risk. Reference should always be
this data will occur. These files are current as of the date of issue. Your use
Magnetic media does not constitute contract documentation and updates of

be reported to the architect before the affected work commences.
specialists drawings / documents and any discrepancies or variations are to
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant consultants and / or

dimensions only are to be taken from thisdrawing.
variations are to be reported to the architect before work commences. Figured
site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site. Any discrepancies or
Dimensions, area and levels where given are only approximate and subject to

This scheme is subject to town planning and all other necessary consents.

detailed on this drawing, note the following:
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.
It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor

FIRMSTONE CONSORTIA ONE

.

BEDMINSTER
ST. CATHERINE'S PLACE 

0

METRES

1 2 3 4 5 10 15

GF

0.00m AOD

+ 8.1m AOD

datum

02

+ 18.9m AOD

+ 15.9m AOD

03

+ 12.9m AOD

01

+ 21.9m AOD

04

+ 24.9m AOD

05

+ 26.7m AOD

PITCHED ROOF

P
age 69



P01

LR

P062204P07

KEY PLAN

JULY 20181:200

NORTH ELEVATION (EAST STREET)

BTLR FIRST ISSUE

BT

GENERAL UPDATES BT17.07.2018 LRP02

11.07.2018

GENERAL UPDATES BT24.07.2018 LRP03

BT07.08.2018 LRP04 BLOCK A & B UPDATED

ENTRANCE
PLACE 
CATHERINE'S 
ST 

CLADDING
TIMBER SLATS 

WINDOWS 
CEILING 
FLOOR TO BLOCK D

FINISH
WHITE BRICK

FINISH
WHITE BRICK

WINDOWS 
CEILING 
FLOOR TO 

BALUSTRADE
GLASS STAIRS

BLOCK E
FA
EXISTING 

ÇADE

21.09.2018 LR BTPLANNING ISSUEP05

03.06.2019 LR BTP06 UPDATED

LR BTP07 PLANNING ISSUE13.09.2019

BALUSTRADE
WITH GLASS 
BALCONIES 
BOLT - ON

Job Title

Drawing Title

Client

Date Drawn

CommentsByDate

Drawing Record

Checked

Scale @ A1

E-mail

020 7255 1150

admin@leslie-jones.co.uk

PLANNING ISSUE

Rev

Telephone

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING

Consultants

Key Plan

Checked

Job No. Drawing No. Revision

A ( )

N

ONLY)
(UNUSUAL AND DIFFICULT TO MANAGE 
SIGNIFICANT HEALTH AND SAFETY RISKS

3646

Suite 302 Grand Union Studios

322 Ladbroke Grove, London.

W105AD

does not contain any.
effort to ensure that it is scanned for viruses, we cannot guarantee that it
responsibility and attributed to yourselves. Whilst Leslie Jones make every
produced by yourselves which contains part or all of this data remains your
made to the hard copy which is superior to the digital format. Any document
of the content of these files is at your own risk. Reference should always be
this data will occur. These files are current as of the date of issue. Your use
Magnetic media does not constitute contract documentation and updates of

be reported to the architect before the affected work commences.
specialists drawings / documents and any discrepancies or variations are to
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant consultants and / or

dimensions only are to be taken from thisdrawing.
variations are to be reported to the architect before work commences. Figured
site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site. Any discrepancies or
Dimensions, area and levels where given are only approximate and subject to

This scheme is subject to town planning and all other necessary consents.

detailed on this drawing, note the following:
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.
It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor

FIRMSTONE CONSORTIA ONE

.

BEDMINSTER
ST. CATHERINE'S PLACE 

0

METRES

1 2 3 4 5 10 15

GF

0.00m AOD

+ 8.1m AOD

datum

02

+ 18.9m AOD

+ 15.9m AOD

03

+ 12.9m AOD

01

+ 21.9m AOD

04

+ 24.9m AOD

05 + 26m AOD

PARAPET

P
age 70



SIGNAGESIGNAGE

ENTRANCE

RESIDENTIAL 

ENTRANCE

RESIDENTIAL 

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

FIRST ISSUELRP01

LR RR

RR

P062202P08

GENERAL EAST ELEVATION

20.03.2018

KEY PLAN

JULY 2018

LR RR04.07.2018P02 GENERAL UPDATES

1:200

GENERAL UPDATES BT17.07.2018 LRP03

GENERAL UPDATES24.07.2018 LRP04 BT

06.08.2018 LRP05 BTBLOCK A & B UPDATED

HALL
ENTRANCE 
BLOCK B 

STORAGE
BIN / RECYCLE 

DUPLEX
ENTRANCE TO 
INDIVIDUAL 

HALL
ENTRANCE 
BLOCK C

BALCONIES
JULIET 

WINDOW
CEILING 
FLOOR TO BRICK FINISH

ENTRANCE
SERVICE YARD 

AMENITY 
PRIVATE 
BALUSTRADE.
ALUMINIM 

AMENITY 
PRIVATE 
SHARED 
BALUSTRADE.
ALUMINIM 

FINISH
TILE BRICK 

BALUSTRADE
GLASS 

UNIT
COMMERCIAL 
PROPOSED 

21.09.2018 LR BTPLANNING ISSUEP06

CLADDING
SEAM METAL 
STANDING 

03.06.2019 LR BTP07 UPDATED

LR BTP08 13.09.2019 PLANNING ISSUE

Job Title

Drawing Title

Client

Date Drawn

CommentsByDate

Drawing Record

Checked

Scale @ A1

E-mail

020 7255 1150

admin@leslie-jones.co.uk

PLANNING ISSUE

Rev

Telephone

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING

Consultants

Key Plan

Checked

Job No. Drawing No. Revision

A ( )

N

ONLY)
(UNUSUAL AND DIFFICULT TO MANAGE 
SIGNIFICANT HEALTH AND SAFETY RISKS

3646

Suite 302 Grand Union Studios

322 Ladbroke Grove, London.

W105AD

does not contain any.
effort to ensure that it is scanned for viruses, we cannot guarantee that it
responsibility and attributed to yourselves. Whilst Leslie Jones make every
produced by yourselves which contains part or all of this data remains your
made to the hard copy which is superior to the digital format. Any document
of the content of these files is at your own risk. Reference should always be
this data will occur. These files are current as of the date of issue. Your use
Magnetic media does not constitute contract documentation and updates of

be reported to the architect before the affected work commences.
specialists drawings / documents and any discrepancies or variations are to
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant consultants and / or

dimensions only are to be taken from thisdrawing.
variations are to be reported to the architect before work commences. Figured
site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site. Any discrepancies or
Dimensions, area and levels where given are only approximate and subject to

This scheme is subject to town planning and all other necessary consents.

detailed on this drawing, note the following:
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.
It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor

FIRMSTONE CONSORTIA ONE

.

BEDMINSTER
ST. CATHERINE'S PLACE 

0

METRES

1 2 3 4 5 10 15

GF

0.00m AOD

+ 8.9m AOD

datum

01

+ 15.7m AOD

+ 12.7m AOD

02

+ 18.7m AOD

03

+ 21.7m AOD

04

+ 24.7m AOD

05

+ 27.7m AOD

06

+ 30.7m AOD

+ 35.2m AOD

PARAPET

07

GF

0.00m AOD

datum

01

MEZZ

02

03

PARAPET

+ 8.65m AOD

+ 11.65m AOD

+ 17.65m AOD

+ 20.65m AOD

 + 14.65m AOD

+ 22.15m AOD

P
age 71



SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE
SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

S

T

C

A

T

H

E

R

I

N

E

S

S

T

C

A

T

H

E

R

I

N

E

S

SIGNAGE

FIRST ISSUELRP01

LR RR

RR

GENERAL SOUTH ELEVATION

P062200P08

20.03.2018

KEY PLAN

LR RR04.07.2018P02 GENERAL UPDATES

JULY 20181:200

GENERAL UPDATES17.07.2018 LRP03 BT

GENERAL UPDATES24.07.2018 LRP04 BT

06.08.2018 LRP05 BTBLOCK A& B UPDATED

BRICKWORK
PROJECTING

ENTRANCE
PLACE 
CATHERINE'S 
ST 

FINISH
WHITE BRICK 

BRICK PANEL
STEPPED 

WINDOWS
CEILING 
FLOOR TO 

CENTRE 
30mm to 
BACKGROUND 
FINS AND 
ALUMINIUM 
100 X 75

PANEL  
SPANDED 
METAL
RAL 7013

ENTRANCE
PD BLOCK

BALCONIES
JULIET 

BRICK FINISH

WINDOWS
TO CEILING 
FLOOR

BLOCK A
HALL TO 
ENTRANCE 
HEIGHT 
DOUBLE 

BRICK
WITH
ALIGNED 
METAL
PERFORATED 
MESH 
EXPANDED 

SHOPFRONTS
COMMERCIAL 
PROPOSED 

BALUSTRADE
WITH GLASS 
BALCONIES 
BOLT-ON

AMENITY
PRIVATE 
SHARED 
BALUSTRADE
GLASS 

SHOPFRONT 
COMMERCIAL
PROPOSED 

BALUSTRADE
WITH GLASS 
BALCONIES 
BOLT-ON

21.09.2018 LR BTPLANNING ISSUEP06

HOUSE
CATHERINE'S 
ST 

ENTRANCE
STORE
SCH BIKE 

CLADDING
SEAM METAL 
STANDING 

BALUSTRADE
STEEL PAINTED

BALUSTRADE
PAINTED 
WITH STEEL 
BALCONIES 
BOLT-ON

03.06.2019 LR BTP07 UPDATED 

LR BTP08 13.09.2019 PLANNING ISSUE

COLONNADE
HEIGHT 
DOUBLE 

Job Title

Drawing Title

Client

Date Drawn

CommentsByDate

Drawing Record

Checked

Scale @ A1

E-mail

020 7255 1150

admin@leslie-jones.co.uk

PLANNING ISSUE

Rev

Telephone

DO NOT SCALE OFF THIS DRAWING

Consultants

Key Plan

Checked

Job No. Drawing No. Revision

A ( )

N

ONLY)
(UNUSUAL AND DIFFICULT TO MANAGE 
SIGNIFICANT HEALTH AND SAFETY RISKS

3646

Suite 302 Grand Union Studios

322 Ladbroke Grove, London.

W105AD

does not contain any.
effort to ensure that it is scanned for viruses, we cannot guarantee that it
responsibility and attributed to yourselves. Whilst Leslie Jones make every
produced by yourselves which contains part or all of this data remains your
made to the hard copy which is superior to the digital format. Any document
of the content of these files is at your own risk. Reference should always be
this data will occur. These files are current as of the date of issue. Your use
Magnetic media does not constitute contract documentation and updates of

be reported to the architect before the affected work commences.
specialists drawings / documents and any discrepancies or variations are to
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant consultants and / or

dimensions only are to be taken from thisdrawing.
variations are to be reported to the architect before work commences. Figured
site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site. Any discrepancies or
Dimensions, area and levels where given are only approximate and subject to

This scheme is subject to town planning and all other necessary consents.

detailed on this drawing, note the following:
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.
It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor

FIRMSTONE CONSORTIA ONE

.

BEDMINSTER
ST. CATHERINE'S PLACE 

0

METRES

1 2 3 4 5 10 15

GF

0.00m AOD

+ 8.9m AOD

datum

01

+ 15.7m AOD

+ 12.7m AOD

02

+ 18.7m AOD

03

+ 21.7m AOD

04

+ 24.7m AOD

05

+ 27.7m AOD

06

+ 30.7m AOD

+ 35.2m AOD

PARAPET

07

datum

0.00m AOD

GF

02

03

04

07

08

11

13

12

ROOF

14

05

06

09

10

PARAPET

01

MEZZ

+ 16.400m AOD

+ 13.400m AOD

+ 9.400m AOD

+ 19.400m AOD

+ 22.400m AOD

+ 25.400m AOD

+ 28.400m AOD

+ 31.400m AOD

+ 34.400m AOD

+ 37.400m AOD

+ 40.400m AOD

+ 43.400m AOD

+ 46.400m AOD

+ 49.400m AOD

+ 52.400m AOD

+ 55.400m AOD

+ 58.400m AOD

+ 63.900m AOD

15

+ 61.400m AOD

P
age 72


	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	5 Appeals
	6 Enforcement
	8 Planning and Development
	8a 18/05310/F - St Catherine's Place Shopping Centre, East Street, Bedminster
	RELEVANT HISTORY
	RELEVANT POLICIES
	KEY ISSUES
	RECOMMENDED
	Supporting Documents 


